
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Minutes
Board of Commissioners


April 28, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, April 28, 2011, at 7:00
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
________________________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Frady called the meeting to order.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation.
Pledge of Allegiance.  


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Horgan made a motion to accept the agenda as presented.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:
1. Presentation of the Heartsaver Award by the American Heart Association representative Mike


Willingham to Russell Sharpe, Denise Clayburn, Matt Myers, Michael Nations, David Winkles and
Jonathan Kempler for saving the life of Mr. Mike Aquino on January 31, 2011:


Public Safety Director Allen McCullough and representatives of the American Heart Association which included Kimberly
Lambert and Madison Campbell  presented the Heartsaver Award to Fayette County Firefighter/EMT Russell Sharpe,
Piedmont Fayette Hospital Registered Nurse Denise Clayburn, Peachtree City Police Officer Matt Myers and Sandy
Springs Firefighter/EMT Michael Nations.  Mike Aquino, who suffered the cardiac arrest, explained what had occurred
at the Peachtree City World Gym.  Mr. Aquino said whatever honor these individuals receive, they deserve in his heart.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 28, 2011


Page 2


PUBLIC HEARING:
2. Consideration of Petition No. 1221-11, Storage Xxtra Hwy. 85, LLC., Owner, and Fred Rickman, Jr.,


Agent, request to rezone 18.139 acres from M-1 to PUD-PSBC to allow a mixture of uses within the O-I,
C-C, C-H, and M-1 zoning districts.  This property is located in Land Lot 200 of the 5  District and frontsth


on SR 85 North:


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina read the rules for rezoning petitions.  A copy of the rules, identified
as “Attachment No. 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Chairman Frady asked if the petitioner was present for this rezoning request.  


Fred Rickman, Jr. said he was the managing member of the Storage Xxtra Hwy 85, LLC.  He said he was asking for the
Board’s consideration to approve his request to rezone 18.139 acres from M-1 to PUD-PSBC to allow a mixture of uses
including a small business center within the O-I, C-C, C-H and M-1 zoning districts.  He said this would attract new
business owners, existing businesses looking for affordable tenant space, and home based businesses that have
expanded.  He said the existing use was a self-storage facility and incubator businesses composed of twelve buildings
approximately 162,200 square feet, tenant and self-storage space, and two undeveloped pads totaling 58,000 square
feet.  He said the total build out if all of the land was developed would be 220,200 square feet with the largest single
tenant space being 600 square feet and the largest storage unit was 500 square feet.  He said the proposed use was
a mixture of uses permitted within the O-I, C-C, C-H and M-1 zoning districts as allowed under the new PUD-PSBC
zoning district.  He said the proposed uses for buildings 2 and 3 are O-I, C-C and C-H and the proposed uses for
buildings 5 and 6 are M-1 and the proposed uses for buildings 1and 4 and 7-14 are from the C-H and M-1 zoning
districts.  He noted that the surrounding property was zoned M-1 and M-2 and City of Fayetteville.  He said the request
was in compliance with the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan and would not adversely affect the existing use and
usability of nearby property and would not result in a burdensome use of roads, utilities or schools and the existing
conditions in the area’s continued development as non-residential districts support this petition.  He said he was not
aware of any public concern for this rezoning request and the Planning Staff has recommended approval as well as the
Planning Commission who approved his request by a 5-0 vote on April 7 .  He said he was respectfully requestingth


approval from the Board of Commissioners for this petition for rezoning.  He said he would reserve any additional time
that he had to answer any questions that may come up.


Chairman Frady asked if anyone was present to speak in favor of this rezoning petition.  Hearing none, he asked if
anyone was present to speak in opposition to the petition.  He asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.


Commissioner Horgan felt this was a great idea for that area.  He said the work on this project had been going on for
a while and he appreciated everything that staff had done in trying to create this business area.  He said every storage
company in the area that he had spoken with was fully supportive of this request.  He said he was in favor of this request
and felt it was a good idea.  He complimented the staff for all of their hard work.


Commissioner Brown said he agreed with Commissioner Horgan.  He said he also felt this was a good idea.  He
remarked that this was a new zoning dynamic and he thanked staff and petitioner for putting all of this together.  


Chairman Frady interjected that he also felt this was a good idea.   







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 28, 2011


Page 3


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve Petition No. 1221-11 to rezone 18.139 acres from M-1 to PUD-PSBC
to allow a mixture of uses within the O-I, C-C, C-H and M-1 zoning districts.   Commissioner McCarty seconded the
motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of Staff’s Analysis and Investigation, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  A copy of the Ordinance and Resolution approving Petition No.
1221-11, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


3. Consideration of the Packaged Beer and Wine Sales License for RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc. d/b/a
RaceTrac #192, 897 Highway 85 South, Fayetteville, Georgia, RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc., Owner, and
Gabriel G. Wallace, Corporate Agent/Applicant.  This property is located in Land Lot 70 of the 5  District,th


fronts Ramah Road and SR 85 South, and is zoned C-H.  This is for a New Location:


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina read the request for a packaged beer and wine sales license for
RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc.  He remarked that staff as well as the County Attorney had approved this application.  A copy
of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Chairman Frady asked if the applicant was present for this discussion.  


Mr. Gabriel Wallace felt Fayette County would be a great opportunity for business and he thanked the Board for the
opportunity to present this application for a packaged beer and wine sales license for RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc.


Chairman Frady asked if anyone was present to speak in favor of this application.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone
wished to speak in opposition.  Hearing none, he asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.  


Commissioner Horgan  made a motion to approve the Packaged Beer and Wine Sales License for RaceTrac Petroleum,
Inc. d/b/a RaceTrac #192, 897 Highway 85 South, Fayetteville, Georgia, RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc., Owner, and Gabriel
G. Wallace, Corporate Agent/Applicant.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.            
                                          
PUBLIC COMMENT:
David Hall: David Hall expressed his displeasure with the Board’s response to an e-mail that he had sent regarding
continued construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass. He said the citizens of this County were the majority and the
Board would know this in the next election.  He said he was thankful that Commissioner Brown and Commissioner
McCarty were members of this Board.  


Steve Smithfield: Steve Smithfield said he was astonished when he heard that Commissioner Lee Hearn had nominated
his cousin to the serve on the Board of Elections and did not admit this fact until a later date.  He felt there was so much
negativity in the public regarding this nomination that the Board should make a motion to remove Mr. Lester from the
Board of Elections.  He also commented on several situations that he was aware of involving property owners and their
property being condemned as a result of the West Fayetteville Bypass.   


Josh Bloom: Josh Bloom commented on several issues that were of concern to him and several friends including the
West Fayetteville Bypass, mass transit, and the appointment of a relative to the Board of Elections. He said he had never
attended a Board of Commissioners meeting until tonight but he felt compelled to come.  He said there was a great deal
of worry and resentment about the direction that the Board is taking the County.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 28, 2011


Page 4


Bob Ross: Bob Ross commented on a Marine promotional which is Trust, Respect and Honor–Earned–Never Given.
He commented on the last meeting of the Board of Commissioners in December 2010 when Chairman Smith denied two
newly elected and sworn in Commissioners to sit in an Executive Session.  He said Chairman Frady, Commissioner
Horgan and Commissioner Hearn did not do the right thing and ask the newly sworn in Commissioners to sit in on this
meeting.  He said those Commissioners sat mute–See No Evil, Speak No Evil, Hear No Evil.  He commented on the
construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass as well as the projects listed on the SPLOST.  He also commented on the
appointment made to the Board of Elections.  He said the public speaking out now was not the same public speaking
out during the years of the previous Board.  He said until Chairman Frady, Commissioner Horgan and Commissioner
Hearn live up to the promise made by the two new Commissioners who said when they were sworn in that they would
look to earn the respect of every citizen in the County rather than demand it, he and many others would continue to come
to the Thursday evening Commission meetings.    


Denise Ognio: Denise Ognio remarked on David Hall’s comments and pointed out to the Board that David’s concerns
were very strong and that was the reason he continued to speak out at the Board meetings.  She said she also agreed
with another gentleman who mentioned that he would rather be at home with his family than at this meeting.  She also
urged Commissioner Hearn to do the right thing regarding the appointment to the Board of Elections.  


Tom Waller: Tom Waller said he wanted to express his concern about the loss of the County Extension Agent in the
University of Georgia Cooperative Extension Office here at the complex.  He felt this would be a great loss to the County.


CONSENT AGENDA: Commissioner Brown requested Item # 6 be removed for discussion and the Board agreed with
his request.  Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve consent agenda items 4-13 with the exception of item
#6 as presented.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  


COOPERATIVE EXTENSION OFFICE - Annual Agreement:
4. Approval of staff’s recommendation that the County renew its annual Agreement with the University of Georgia


for the provision of Extension Office Programs in Fayette County for a period beginning July 1, 2010 through
June 30, 2012; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement.  A copy of the request and
backup, identified as “Attachment No.  6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT - Purchase Optical Scanners:
5. Approval to transfer $4,502 from the County’s Contingency Fund to Elections Department budget to cover the


balance of the cost of repairs to voting equipment; and approval to purchase two AccuVote-OS Optical
Scanners at a cost of $1,940, for a total request for funds from the Contingency Fund of $6,442.00.  A copy of
the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No.  7", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


FLEET MAINTENANCE - Mill Creek Environmental Services, Inc. Agreement:
6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an agreement with Mill Creek Environmental Services, Inc.


(MCES) to conduct quarterly groundwater monitoring as required by the Georgia Environmental Protection
Division, at a quarterly cost of $3,859; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement pending
approval of the County Attorney.  A copy of the request, backup, and Acceptance of Work, identified as
“Attachment No. 8", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


Commissioner Brown said he did not remember this work being in the initial contract and with the quarterly cost
exceeding $15,000 per year, he asked if this had been bid out to see if someone could do the work at a reduced rate.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 28, 2011


Page 5


Director of Fleet Maintenance Bill Lackey responded this was put out for bid in 2008.  He said the County would not incur
these expenses because it had already met the deductible.  Commissioner Brown asked who would be paying the
quarterly cost of $3,859 and Mr. Lackey said the County would be reimbursed by the Georgia Underground Storage Tank
Trust Fund which was basically an insurance policy.  


County Attorney Scott Bennett remarked this is the agreement that the E.P.D. finally accepted and now the County was
performing the work that E.P.D. said the County must do to monitor the site.  He said this was the company that came
up with the proposal in working with the E.P.D.  He said this work was tied to the original agreement.  


Commissioner Brown made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation to enter into an agreement with Mill Creek
Environmental Services, Inc. (MCES) to conduct quarterly groundwater monitoring as required by Georgia
Environmental Protection Division, at a quarterly cost of $3,859; and authorization for the Chairman to execute said
agreement pending approval of the County Attorney. Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  The motion carried
5-0.  


HUMAN RESOURCES - Employee Health Care Benefits Annual Renewal and Implementation of Options:
7. Approval for the Chairman to execute any and all required documents associated with the annual renewal and


implementation of options for Employee Health Care Benefits, including but not limited to agreements and
contracts, for the benefits year which begins June 1, 2011 pending approval of the County Attorney. A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


PLANNING AND ZONING - Resolution No. 2011-07 Fire Services Impact Fee Adopted:  
8. Approval of a Resolution to adopt the “Fayette County 2010 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fee


(FY2010), including Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvement Element and
Short-Term Work Program (FY2011-FY2015.)”.  A copy of the request, backup and Resolution NO. 2011-07,
identified as “Attachment No. 10", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE - Budget Adjustment for Criminal Investigation Overtime:
9. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Criminal Investigations Division


by $4,087.54 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.  A copy of the
request, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE - Amendment of the State Confiscated Revenue Technical Services Revenue Account: 
10. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the State Confiscated Revenue Technical Services Revenue


Account by $40.00 to recognize abandoned monies which have been ordered retained for law enforcement
enhancement.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 12", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE - Disposal of Three Vehicles for the Purpose of Acquiring One Replacement Vehicle:  
11. Approval to authorize the Sheriff to dispose of three vehicles for the purpose of acquiring one replacement


vehicle; and authorization for the Chairman to execute all necessary paperwork for the disposition of the
vehicles and the acquisition of the replacement vehicle, using Federal Seizure Funds for any balance due.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 28, 2011


Page 6


WATER SYSTEM - Flyer for Frederick Brown, Jr. Amphitheater Approved for Insertion in Water Bills:
12. Approval of staff’s request for authorization to insert a flyer from The Frederick Brown, Jr. Amphitheater in the


water bills to be mailed out during the month of May.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 14", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


MINUTES:
13. Approval of the April 6, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes and the April 14, 2011 Board of


Commissioners Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:
14. Further discussion of a request from the Physical Health Department for additional cleaning services


and costs associated with providing space and ancillary services to that agency:


County Administrator Jack Krakeel briefed the Board on this matter. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.
15", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.   He felt there were two issues and they were separate
issues.  He said the fact that there was a recoverable stream for having the WIC program located in Fayette County was
one issue.  He said he would recommend that the Board institute a contractual amendment to allow Fayette County to
recover pro rated costs for the space that was being provided to the WIC program.  He said these were costs that were
reimbursable through the Federal program and he felt it was appropriate that Fayette County receive those fees.  He
commented on dedicating the revenue to assist the Public Health Department and said that would be a separate issue
because those funds would go into the General Fund.  He said he was not sure that would be a decision that the Board
would have to make this evening but could be something for discussion during the budget deliberations.  He said the
contract addendum was an issue that the Board needed to take action on tonight.  He said there was a requirement in
the contract that sixty days prior to the renewal date, any modifications to the contract need to be submitted and that
occurs on May 1 .  He said he was not sure if the Board needed to take action tonight on the cleaning issue and thatst


could be deferred to the budget discussions.  


Commissioner Brown clarified that the County could recover approximately $275 per month for utilities and Mr. Krakeel
replied yes, this would be for eligible expenses under the Federal guidelines for the WIC program.  Commissioner Brown
asked for the dollar figure that the Public Health Department said they needed in order to get the level of cleaning that
they need in that facility.  Mr. Krakeel said there were five bids received for conducting the cleaning services and those
bids were $490, $700, $995, $1,130 and $1,265.  


Commissioner Brown remarked that the Fayette County Health facility gets a tremendous amount of use from people
who are residents of other counties.  He asked if the State takes this into account and also if this would be anywhere
in the formula.  He noted that the County was obviously paying for those out of county people.  Mr. Krakeel said there
had actually been a meeting with the Director of the State Department of Public Health approximately three weeks ago
and Commissioner Horgan was also present at that meeting.  He said for several years Fayette County has stated that
the formula for how public health is funded within the County was not a factually based formula, but was a formula using
a population base and the population base being used was not a current figure.  


Mr. Krakeel further remarked that as the validity of the population based formula was questioned by several counties
throughout the State, there has been movement at the State level to change the formula.  He said he did not recall all
of the numbers, but he did know that Fayette County was one of the counties, that under the new funding formula, would
receive an increase in the amount of revenue to support public health in Fayette County.  He said the problem was with
the implementation time frame for the new formula being a five year implementation schedule.  He said, at best, the
County would potentially be looking at a 20% increase on an annual basis for that component of the revenue stream.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 28, 2011


Page 7


He felt it would take some significant time before the County and the Health Department realize the full extent and value
of the new formula. He said the formula uses a population component, a poverty component and an aggregate poverty
component.  He said the issue had been brought up about why there was not a component in the formula that recognizes
out of county population utilization.  He said the State Public Health Director was sympathetic to this issue, but was pretty
adamant that there was not going to be any change in the formula at this juncture.  


Commissioner Horgan interjected that data had been presented to the Board of Health at its last meeting that the County
was only receiving approximately 10% to 15% out of County people.  


Mr. Krakeel confirmed that the County was required to provide space for the Board of Health but there was not, to his
understanding, a requirement for the County to provide space for the WIC program.  


Commissioner McCarty asked if the cleaning status could be left as it was currently, and Mr. Krakeel replied that the
Health Department had received a commitment from the District for additional funding in the amount of $700 per month
and he felt they would try and get a contract close to that amount.  


Commissioner Horgan said the Board of Health and the WIC program here in Fayette County do receive the most
complaints and the majority of the complaints involved cleanliness.  Mr. Krakeel noted that the complaints received were
directed at the entire Health Department area and the standards that were presented to the Board previously go far
above and beyond the level of service that the County was capable of providing.  


Commissioner McCarty asked how the cleanliness for the Fayette County Health Department compared to surrounding
counties.  Commissioner Horgan replied that there had been no comparison but the fact that the Fayette County Health
Department had received the most complaints.  


Chairman Frady said he did not understand the request for additional cleaning being necessary.  Commissioner Horgan
responded that currently the County provides two days per week of basic janitorial services including trash pickup and
so forth.  


Commissioner Brown noted that there was a level of infectious control that the Health Department has to maintain but
in the private sector this was done by the employees who operate the facility.  He said he did not understand why the
Health Department was not purchasing these supplies and doing this in the same manner as the private sector, but
instead wanting a third party to come in and handle this for them.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the County Administrator to send a new agreement to WIC and the
Board of Health as far as having them in the County’s facility as well as working with the Board of Health to receive the
$700 for the additional janitorial cleaning of the facility.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.


Commissioner Brown asked if the motion should include the portion of the contract in terms of recovering the utilities
and things of that nature.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel said he had some concerns about the part of the motion regarding recovery of the
$700 per month from the Board of Health for cleaning services.  He felt some additional thought should go into how this
should be constructed and whether it was a contract that the Health Department was responsible for versus the County
being responsible for the cleaning of the facility.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 28, 2011


Page 8


Commissioner Horgan said he would amend his motion to at least provide  a new contract for WIC in the facility to regain
services as far as utilities and recapture that.  He said he agreed that this should be discussed further.  Commissioner
Hearn said he would amend his second to the motion.  


Commissioner Brown questioned if the adjustments were made to the contract for the reimbursables and the contract
was executed, was the County now responsible for keeping WIC in this facility for another 12 months.  


Mr. Krakeel replied yes, if the contract was approved, but he added that there was nothing that would preclude the
cancellation of the contract and that would require 60 days notice.  He said that would apply to both parties.  He said
the cleaning issue was a Board of Health issue.  He said WIC was just one program that was co-located in their facility.


Chairman Frady asked if he would need to sign this agreement and Mr. Krakeel remarked that the prior contract had
been signed by Commissioner Horgan, but he felt it appropriate for the Chairman or Commissioner Horgan to sign the
contract.  


The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the letter and contract, identified as “Attachment No. 16", follow these minutes and
are made an official part hereof.         


15. Approval of staff’s recommendation that the Strategic Technology and Risk Assessment Plan
developed by LBL Technology Partners be accepted by the County as the basis for the County’s five-
year plan identifying future technology initiatives and the reduction of risks associated with the
County’s technology systems:


Information Systems Director Russell Prince and Consultant Brad Lyons of LBL Technology Partners discussed and
presented the Board with a Strategic Technology and Risk Assessment Plan developed by LBL Technology Partners.
Mr. Prince asked for the Board’s consideration to adopt the Strategic Technology Plan and Risk Assessment documents
as a five-year plan for future technology initiatives.  A copy of the request and the power point presentation, identified
as “Attachment No. 17", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Commissioner Brown made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation that the Strategic Technology and Risk
Assessment Plan developed by LBL Technology Partners be accepted by the County as the basis for the County’s five-
year plan identifying future technology initiatives and the reduction of risks associated with the County’s technology
systems.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  


NEW BUSINESS:
16. Steve Vaughn with GEBCorp will present the annual valuation report on the County’s defined benefit


retirement plan:


Director of the ACCG Retirement Programs Steve Vaughn presented the Board with the annual valuation report
regarding the County’s Defined Benefit Retirement Plan.  He noted that the return for the Defined Benefits Plan as a
whole for 2010 was approximately 13½% which was 5¾% above the actuarial projections.  He noted that this was the
second year for the Plan and in 2009 the return was approximately 21.7%.  He remarked that this Plan was started on
July 1, 2009 at which time a significant number of assets came in during January of 2010 from employee buy backs. He
remarked that the County was in excellent shape and 100% funded  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 18", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 28, 2011


Page 9


17. Consideration of preferred provider agreements under the County’s employee health care plan that will
address sleep disorder diagnostics and associated durable medical equipment as well as digestive
healthcare procedures:


Human Resources Director Connie Boehnke and Jaki Turner representing Pacific General discussed these issues with
the Board.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 19", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  She remarked that Ms. Turner had negotiated Agreements with Total Sleep Diagnostics, Inc. as well as Trusted
Life Care, Inc. for the Board’s consideration to approve and authorize the Chairman to execute.  She said this would be
a sole source at the same discount level currently in the County’s plan.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the contracts with Total Sleep Diagnostics, Inc. and Trusted Life Care,
Inc. and authorize the Chairman to execute the contracts pending review of the County Attorney.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the contracts, identified as “Attachment No.  20", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Ms. Boehnke also remarked on the Summit Endoscopy Center contract.  She said the providers were in the network but
the facility was out of the network.  She noted that employees could go to the hospital for the procedure, but it would be
at a higher cost.  She said this was costing the employees more money as well as costing the plan more.  She said Ms.
Turner had gone directly to the source and negotiated an agreement with Summit Endoscopy Center for the Board’s
consideration.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the contract with Summit Endoscopy Center and authorize the
Chairman to execute the contract pending review of the County Attorney.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.
The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the contract, identified as “Attachment No. 21", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.  


18. Consideration of proposed Amendment to the County’s Flexible Benefits Plan as required by the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010:


Human Resources Director Connie Boehnke and Jaki Turner representing Pacific General discussed this issue with the
Board.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 22", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  She said the Flexible Spending Plan needed to “mirror” the same language in the County’s Health Plan.


Commissioner Brown questioned if the County could file for an exemption for keeping dependents on the plan until age
26 under the Federal law.  


Ms. Turner responded that the County’s plan options had already been approved and it could not be changed at this
point.  She said the County must keep the same plan with no alterations whatsoever except for certain components such
as the dependent age or the preventative services that had to be expanded under the law.  She said if the Board wanted
to redesign anything within the Plan structure, there would no longer be eligibility to grandfather.  


Ms. Boehnke remarked that with the restrictions of the employer to remain in a grandfather status, it would be very
challenging for anyone to maintain the exact same benefits and the exact same rates in the same contribution ratio.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 28, 2011


Page 10


Commissioner Horgan asked if there was an estimate for enacting this plan to be in compliance and Ms. Turner replied
it would mean a 12% increase and this as just Phase I.  Ms. Turner said this would be incremented over the next several
years through 2019.  Chairman Frady asked if this increase was due to the new healthcare law and Ms. Turner replied
yes it was.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the amendment to the County’s Flexible Benefits Plan as required by
the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 and authorize the Chairman to execute any and all necessary
documentation pending review by the County Attorney.  Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  The motion carried
5-0.  A copy of the agreements, identified as “Attachment No. 23", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:  
Report on Storm Damage in Georgia: County Administrator Jack Krakeel reported on the utter degree of devastation
that had occurred across the Southeast.  He remarked that Fayette County, very fortunately, escaped the wrath of these
storms.  He noted that County crews were busy throughout the night including the Public Works crews who removed
trees from roadways.  He noted that there were two fatalities in Spalding County as a result of this storm as well as
major, major damage in that County.  He said Fayette County Emergency Services had responded to Spalding County
to assist them with this damage and also Fayette County Public Works employees had responded with several pieces
of equipment to help clear roadways.  He noted that individuals from the Fayette County Building Department had also
assisted Spalding County with damage assessment of structures.  


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:
Chairman Frady: Chairman Frady asked Commissioner Brown if there was any update on the regional library funding
issue.  Commissioner Brown responded that there was nothing the County could do to make changes because the State
had frozen everything.  He said he was continuing to collect data on this matter and noted that the County was very
limited in terms of options.   


Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown said he wanted to also comment on the recent storm and noted concern
with the Emergency Command Center being located on the second floor of the Administrative Complex which was
essentially a retail structure and not built to any specific standards.  He said the command operations room had a wall
of solid glass leading out to a parking lot.  He said this was less than ideal in terms of what needed to be provided.  He
said this was something that would definitely need to be addressed.  


Chairman Frady remarked there were already plans drawn up to build that particular building.  County Administrator Jack
Krakeel said well over ten years ago when he was the Public Safety Director he had identified the need for an emergency
services facility that could sustain all different types of weather events that the County might witness.  He said this was
strictly an issue of funding.  He said there were plans as well as a design, but it was simply a matter a coming up with
the necessary funding.  He said the County already had the property and in this year’s budget funding was requested
and he had concurred with improving the issue of the glass walls currently in Emergency Services. 


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty said he wanted to comment on a couple of things that add to making
someone proud to live in Fayette County and to be part of what happens here.  He said one was the article in the Fayette
County News stating that Fayette County was named “Georgia’s Healthiest County” and he felt this was tremendous.
He said another one was in the Georgia County Magazine stated that “Fayette County sets the bar for South metro
quality of life.”  He also commented on some Georgia trivia.  He noted that in the late 1880's Matthew Yates found some
strange apples growing near a creek bank and he started to cultivate those apples.  He said at one time many hundreds
of acres of land in the Sandy Creek area were covered in Yates apple trees.  He said these apples were in as much







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 28, 2011


Page 11


demand today as they were in the early 1900's.  He said the only known tree left of the original orchard and that was on
property located near Coleman’s Corner at Westbridge Road and Highway 92.  


Commissioner Hearn: Commissioner Hearn said he wanted to comment on the Elections Board and the make up of
that Board.  He noted that David Studdard who is currently a member of the Elections Board is married to an elected
official who is Clerk of the Superior Court Sheila Studdard.  He said to his knowledge there have been no problems and
no conflicts of interest and no protests and not one single eyebrow has been raised as a result of that relationship.  He
felt some of the comments that had been made were obviously attacks and that would go with the territory.  He said the
people who had attacked him regarding this issue were half as diligent about looking at other issues as it relates to the
Elections Board, that it would add some credence to their motives.  
                                                                                   
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  County Administrator Jack Krakeel requested an Executive Session to discuss litigation and
real estate acquisition.


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss litigation and real estate acquisition
matters.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  


Chairman Frady reconvened the public meeting back to open session.  


Chairman Frady remarked that the Board had discussed litigation and real estate acquisition  matters and staff was given
direction in both instances.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the Executive Session Affidavit affirming
that litigation and real estate were discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The
motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment No. 24", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.  


ADJOURNMENT: Commissioner Brown made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 9:51 p.m.  Commissioner McCarty
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                     Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 26  day of May, 2011.th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








Workshop MinutesWorkshop MinutesWorkshop MinutesWorkshop Minutes
Board of Commissioners


May 4, 2011
 3:30 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in an Official Workshop Session on Wednesday, May 4,
2011, at   3:30 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn
Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk
_____________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order.


Chairman Frady called the May 4, 2011 Board of Commissioners Workshop Meeting to Order at 3:31 p.m.


Acceptance of Agenda.


Commissioner Hearn moved to Accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion. No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


OLD BUSINESS


1. Further discussion of the costs and impacts of various paving and widening alternatives for Snead
Road west of Old Greenville Road.


Road Director Andy Adams discussed the costs and impacts of various paving and widening alternatives for
Snead Road west of Old Greenville Road.  He explained that staff was proposing “a typical section for Snead
Road”, similar to what has already been paved for the other sections of the road.  He concluded his brief
description of the project by telling the Board that the paving project would cost $89,800 but that funds only in







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
May 4, 2011
Page 2


the amount of $53,300 were available.  He did not know from what source the remaining funds could be
allocated.  Mr. Adams spoke of some potential problems that could be encountered by paving the remainder
of Snead Road, and he informed the Board that if it gave approval to the project the work would begin in the
middle of June and would be completed approximately three months later.


Commissioner Brown noted that although a prior Board had approved the project, he did not believe it was a
priority project due to constraints with the budget.  He reminded the other Commissioners that at it’s the April
14, 2011 meeting the Board informed the Sheriff’s Office that it had trouble funding a request for required
inmate health costs, and he did know how funds could be made available for a section of a road with only two
homes on it.  County Administrator Jack Krakeel recommended that the project request be further discussed
and considered at the forthcoming Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Meetings.  


Public Works Director Phil Mallon informed the Board that approximately four property owners had recently
purchased land along the road, that they intended to build homes on the road, that they had made the purchase
with the understanding that the County would pave the road, and that they had dedicated right-of-way for the
paving project.  Chairman Frady agreed by saying he had received a phone call earlier in the week that “said
the same thing.”


The Board directed that this issue be further discussed during the upcoming Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Meetings.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Further discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20.
Zoning Ordinance regarding beekeeping.


Zoning Administrator Dennis Dutton discussed the proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance regarding beekeeping with the Board.  He reminded the Board that
at its March 2, 2011 Workshop Meeting the Commissioners charged the Planning and Zoning staff to
investigate and develop a beekeeping ordinance, and that this charge was prompted at the request of citizens
who actively keep bees.  He informed the Board that since the March Workshop, the Planning Commission has
held three Workshop meetings on the subject, two of which involved a good amount of public input which
resulted in the proposed amendments drafted at the last meeting.  He told the Board that the Planning
Commission, staff, and the beekeepers did not come to a consensus and that the areas of difficulty were: the
number of permitted beehives, setbacks in relation to beehives, the location of beehives, screening of beehives,
and selling honey.  Discussion followed during which Commissioner Brown asked for Mr. Bo Mullins, a local
beekeeper, to give his thoughts to the Board.


Mr. Mullins said he was privileged to sit in on the three Planning Commission Workshop Meetings, and that he
was very impressed with the men who dedicated their time in the workshops since they were “very concerned
about the community and about everybody’s rights with respect to bees.”  He expressed concern that during
the meetings he had not heard one person articulate the Georgia State law that pertained to the establishment
and maintenance of beehives.  He then read O.C.G.A 2-12-41.1 and gave his explanation of the laws.  


Following Mr. Mullin’s presentation, the Board asked County Attorney Scott Bennett to give his explanation of
the code cited by Mr. Mullins.  Mr. Bennett explained that while the law may prevent the Board from regulating
how a beehive is constructed or something of a similar nature, the law did not remove the constitutional
authority of the Board to regulate zoning in the County.  He emphasized that the law specifically recognizes
the constitutional authority of counties to zone property.  He said he has never made any recommendation







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
May 4, 2011
Page 3


regarding how the Board should exercise its zoning power with respect to bees or beehives, but he wanted the
Board to be sure that to understand it has authority through its zoning powers to make decisions about what
zoning classifications and setbacks it desired to establish. 


Commissioner Horgan asked for the Planning Commission, the beekeepers, and staff to “get together and
come up with one good solution since you have all of these three different opinions.”  Mr. Dutton replied that
more time would be required.  Commissioner Horgan replied that he would rather approve something that
everyone is agreeable with.  Further discussion continued.


The Board directed staff to work as a group with the Planning Commission and representatives of the
beekeepers to attempt to reach a consensus on a recommended ordinance, and to return to the Board of
Commissioners during the June 1, 2011 Workshop Meeting.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment
2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


NEW BUSINESS


3. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning
Ordinance regarding recreational vehicles.


Zoning Administrator Dennis Dutton discussed the proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance regarding recreational vehicles with the Board.  He explained that
staff had received a complaint from residents in a subdivision of a recreational vehicle parked and occupied
in a cul-de-sac.   He told the Board that staff had reviewed the complaint and County Ordinances, and had
consulted with the Marshal’s Department who then consulted with the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office.  The
Sheriff’s Office, after conducting its investigation, had decided since the street the recreational vehicle was
parked on “low-speed” street the complaint was unenforceable.  He finished his remarks by saying that those
who raised the complaint were not entirely happy with the proposed amendments to the Ordinance that was
being presented, but that the Planning Commission was recommending the amendments “based on the fact
that [they] still deal with parking on the street [permanently].”


Commissioner Horgan asked if this was the only complaint received by the County, and Mr. Dutton replied that
was the only complaint of this nature that was being received, and that similar complaints arose when a person
parked on a property for longer than 14 days.  Commissioner McCarty replied that it appeared the County was
spending too much time and was worrying too much about an issue that does not happen often and that the
issue was not worth dealing with.  Chairman Frady agreed.  Commissioner Brown also agreed with the
Chairman and Commissioner Frady, but added that he wanted to be sure that “the County avoids the type of
a scenario where a person purchases a large vehicle and parks it on the street.”  Discussion followed.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel informed the Board that this particular complaint has been sent to the
County annually for the past three years, and that he thought the bigger issue may be the noise from the
recreational vehicle’s generator that was running continually day and night.  Commissioner Brown asked
County Attorney Scott Bennett if the generator was the problem and if it is creating a noise problem, if Fayette
County’s Nuisance Ordinances could be used to resolve the complaint.  Mr. Bennett replied that it would be
determined by the decibel levels coming from the generator, and that the County could review the enforcement
issue from that perspective.  He informed the Board that he and the County Marshal would review the problem
and see if the problem could be enforced through the Noise Ordinance.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
May 4, 2011
Page 4


The Board consented to not proceed further with the issue.  The Board further directed that the County Attorney
review the County’s Noise Ordinance in order to determine if the complaint that generated this discussion can
be dealt with through those means.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof. 


4. Discussion of a request by Commissioner McCarty that the Board consider compensating citizens
whose properties are acquired by the County on a “make whole” basis.


Commissioner Allen McCarty presented his request to the Board that it considers compensating citizens whose
properties are acquired by the County on a “make whole” basis.  He explained that Fayette County has many
citizens who are losing property to the County for its bypass projects and that the loss of citizens’ properties
will continue through the future.  He informed the Board that there are State and federal laws regarding the
taking of property and compensation of property, and he wanted to insure that the Board’s goal was “to make
a person whole whose property is taken” within the structure of the law.  He then read Amendment V of the
United States Constitution to support his request.  


At the Board’s request, County Attorney Scott Bennett explained the process the County utilizes to acquire
citizens’ property, the appraisal process, the rights of the citizens in the process, compensable property, and
restrictions associated with the compensation issue.  He told the Board that the Georgia State Constitution
requires that money cannot be paid that counties do not lawfully owe, and that Fayette County is compelled
to determine what it really owes for the value of land “as near as can be determined.”  He acknowledged that
Fayette County is experiencing a financial downturn and that the real estate market is depressed, and that there
are extenuating circumstances that have to be dealt with, but he reminded the Board that he had been
instructed that his job was to balance stewardship of the taxpayer’s money with making sure the property owner
gets a fair and reasonable offer for their properties.  During discussion, Commissioner Horgan asked if property
could be compensated on an emotional basis and Mr. Bennett replied that compensation could not be given
on that basis.


Commissioner McCarty then stated there was “a real good solution to the problem so that the County does not
have to take people’s homes [and that was] for the Board to stop the West Fayetteville Bypass.”


The Board took no action and decided not to consider this issue any further.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


5. Discussion of a request by Commissioner Brown that the Board consider a “Resolution Requesting
Governor Nathan Deal to Veto HB179", which would protect the appearance of Georgia’s highways and
preserve the tree buffers owned by citizens of Georgia.


Commissioner Brown presented his request to the Board that it considers passing a “Resolution Requesting
Governor Nathan Deal to Veto HB179", which would protect the appearance of Georgia’s highways and
preserve the tree buffers owned by citizens of Georgia.  He explained that the Georgia General Assembly has
recently passed House Bill 179 and that it had been sent to Governor Deal for signature.  After explaining the
provisions of HB179, he told the Board that he was opposed to the bill for the following reasons: it would allow
for the clearing of state-owned trees; it would increase the Georgia Department of Transportation’s
maintenance costs; that he wanted to preserve the state’s tree buffers; that he wanted to keep Georgia beautiful
and green, and that some of the billboards along Georgia’s interstates promoted indecent businesses that were







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
May 4, 2011
Page 5


an embarrassment to the State and to families traveling along the roads.  He briefly explained each point of his
opposition during the discussion and asked for the Board to place the resolution on the May 12, 2011 Agenda
for a formal vote.


Commissioner Hearn read a part of HB179 which explained the benefit of the bill, namely that it “provides a
substantial service and benefit to Georgia and Georgia’s citizens as well as the traveling public.”


Commissioner Horgan stated that he “kind of agreed with both sides of the issue” and that he wanted to look
further into the issue.  Commissioner McCarty added that there was enough clear space that billboards could
be built without cutting down trees, and that the more trees the state had the better it would be to help with
pollution.  He concluded that he did not want to see trees cut down, and that the trees belonged to the citizens
of Georgia.  Chairman Frady thought Governor Deal would sign the legislation, and that while he was neutral
on the subject he had no objection to sending the resolution to the Governor.  


The Board directed staff to place the resolution on the May 12, 2011 Agenda for formal approval.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


6. Discussion of a request by Commissioner Brown that the Board consider creating a formal process for
making required appointments to various boards, committees, commissions, and authorities. 


Commissioner Brown presented his request to the Board that it considers creating a formal process for making
required appointments to various Boards, committees, commissioners, and authorities.  He said a sample
application for appointments had been provided to each Commissioner and that audience members could
obtain a copy for themselves through the County Clerk’s Office.  He reminded the Board that there had been
some recent disagreements over appointments to the Board of Elections, and the issue brought it to his
attention that available appointment positions were not advertised.  He stated that Fayette County’s procedure
for filling open positions essentially entailed the Board just picking some people that it knows.  He asked that
the process be more open.  Commissioner Brown argued that the formal process that he was recommending
would introduce a broad range of potential candidates, and he knew that Fayette County is a very highly
educated county full of highly qualified people, and that the process would work to help Fayette County prosper
in the future.


Commissioner Horgan agreed in part with Commissioner Brown saying he thought Board appointments should
be made more public and that “perhaps something should be advertised.”  He said he did not feel comfortable,
however, with requiring volunteers to answer some of the questions on the proposed application.  


Chairman Frady said the problem at hand was similar to the recreational vehicle issue since in all the years
there had only been one problem.  He said the County had not advertised for people to fill open positions since
before Commissioner Bost sat on the Board, and that the practice was to allow a Commissioner to pick a
member from their district to fill the vacancy.  He said Commissioners work to select the best appointee for the
position, that the current practice was the best practice, and that the current practice did not put the Board or
Commissioners in a position to turn down applicants.  He then asked County Attorney Scott Bennett to inform
the Board about what the Ethics Ordinance requires about nepotism.  Mr. Bennett said the Ethics Ordinance
“defines or regulates transactions and business with immediate family which is parents, children, and siblings.”
Chairman Frady asked if the Ethics Ordinance had been violated recently.  Mr. Bennett replied that, as far as
he knew, it had not been violated.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
May 4, 2011
Page 6


Commissioner Hearn asked Executive Assistant Carol Chandler to explain how applicants are routinely chosen
for various appointments to the different bodies.  Ms. Chandler explained the process.


    Commissioner McCarty said he did not have a problem with the selection process, that if the Board appoints
someone it should be someone a Commissioner knows something about, and that information should be made
available to the rest of the Commissioners and anyone in the public who is interested in looking at it.  


Commissioner Brown answered that the problem with the current process was that it was “undemocratic”.  He
said he had heard people complain that they could not find anyone to fill a position, and he pointed out that
Fayette County has approximately 107,000 citizens comprised of some of the most educated and well-qualified
people in the United States, and to not advertise the position but to limit the selection to a Commissioners friend
or neighbor may not be beneficial to the County.  He concluded that the current process where “somebody
rummages around and pulls somebody out and then throws out a name at a meeting” is not right.


Commissioner Horgan retorted that he had never seen Commissioners “rummage around” to put somebody
on a Board.  He thought Commissioner Brown was correct that there were many educated people in Fayette
County, but that the type of person to be selected for a position is the person who goes to the meetings and
“brings themselves forward”.  He concluded that he had never rummaged around just to put somebody in a
position.


The Board took no action and decided not to consider this issue any further.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS


Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Books Available to Commissioners: County Administrator Jack Krakeel reported that two
Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Books would be made available to each Commissioner immediately after the meeting.  He
informed the Board that the first  book was “a high-level summary of the budget” and the second book “was substantially
larger and it is a detailed, line-item by line-item account of the budget.”  He closed his report by providing a brief
summation of the forthcoming Fiscal Year 2012 budget and its challenges, and he reminded the Board that the Budget
Meetings will be held on May 23-24, 2011.


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS


Commissioner Steve Brown: Commissioner Steve Brown commented on the recent appointment of Mr. Addison Lester
to the Fayette County Board of Elections.  He stated that other information had not been disclosed about Mr. Lester
before he said that Mr. Lester sits on the Board of Directors for the Fayetteville Downtown Development Authority.  He
continued that Mr. Lester had an ownership interest in a family land trust of over 109 acres located near the West
Fayetteville Bypass which had not been previously disclosed, and he spoke about the implications of this recent
information, about Mr. Lester’s potential connection to or support of Commissioner Hearn, and about the need of a formal
process to evaluate potential appointees to the various boards, authorities, and commissions.







Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes
May 4, 2011
Page 7


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Horgan moved to adjourn the May 4, 2011 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  The Board adjourned its May 4, 2011
Workshop Meeting at 4:54 p.m.


______________________________ ______________________________
       Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk        Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 26th day of May 2011.


______________________________
     Floyd L. Jones, Deputy Clerk








Minutes
Board of Commissioners


May 12, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, May 12, 2011, at 7:00
 p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Chairman
Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Allen McCarty


Commissioner Absent: Lee Hearn


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


________________________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Frady called the meeting to order.
Commissioner McCarty offered the Invocation.  
Pledge of Allegiance.  


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Commissioner McCarty made a motion to accept the agenda as presented.
Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Commissioner Hearn was absent.  


PUBLIC HEARING:
1. Consideration of a Packaged Beer and Wine License for Nishma Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Davis Country


Store, Inc., 1619 SR 92 South Fayetteville, Georgia, Safdhar Ali Khan, Owner/Applicant.  This property
is located in Land Lot 247 of the 4  District, fronts on SR 92 South, and is zoned A-R.  This is for a Newth


Location:


Judy Abna remarked that she was a certified Para Legal and she confirmed that Mr. Khan lives in Stockbridge and is
leasing Davis Country Store.  She said he had applied for a beer and wine license and his background had been
approved.  



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes


May 12, 2011


Page 2


Safdhar Ali Khan said he was the applicant in this matter and he requested consideration from the Board of
Commissioners to approve his request for a packaged beer and wine license for Nishma Enterprises, Inc.


County Attorney Scott Bennett read the rules for public hearings.  A copy of the rules for public hearings, identified as
“Attachment No. 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Chairman Frady asked if anyone was present to speak in favor of this petition.  Hearing none, he asked if there was
anyone present to speak in opposition.  Hearing none, he asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the Packaged Beer and Wine License for Nishma Enterprises, Inc.
d/b/a Davis Country Store, Inc., 1619 SR 92 South Fayetteville, Georgia, Safdhar Ali Khan, Owner/Applicant.
Commissioner Brown seconded the motion, discussion followed.  


Commissioner Brown clarified that this store was located at 1619 SR 92 South in Fayetteville, Georgia.  The motion
carried 4-0.  Commissioner Hearn was absent.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 2",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


PUBLIC COMMENT:
David Barlow: David Barlow presented his comments to the Board in the form of a power point presentation.  A copy
of his comments, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He
commented on Commissioner Hearn’s nomination of Addison Lester to the Board of Elections and the fact that Mr.
Lester was related to Commissioner Hearn as well as his concern that the family owns land near the West Fayetteville
Bypass.  He asked that Commissioner Hearn consider the obligation that he has to God and the oath he took when he
was sworn into office   


Steve Smithfield: Steve Smithfield commented on Commissioner Hearn’s nomination to the Board of Elections.  He
commented on Addison Lester’s qualifications to serve on the Board of Elections, his family relationship to Commissioner
Hearn and the statement that Mr. Lester owns property adjacent to the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He also noted that
Mr. Lester was the Director of Development for the City of Fayetteville.  He said Mayor Steele was someone who wanted
to annex the West Fayetteville Bypass into Fayetteville.  He suggested an investigation be done immediately by an
outside company of all West Fayetteville Bypass land acquisitions by the County.  


Randy Ognio: Randy Ognio commented on Commissioner Brown’s agenda item #6 on the May 4  Board ofth


Commissioners agenda  requesting that the Board consider creating a formal process for making required appointments
to various boards, committees, commissions and authorities.  He said the Board chose not to take any action on
Commissioner Brown’s request.  He also presented the Board with a copy of Ordinance No. 2010-10 which is the Ethics
Ordinance that the Board approved last year that Commissioner Hearn had voted in favor of.  A copy of the Ordinance
handout, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  He pointed out
several sections of the Ordinance that he felt Commissioner Hearn had violated.    


Ginga Smithfield: Ginga Smithfield remarked on her first dealings with Commissioners at a transportation open house
in 2008 where the proposed West Fayetteville Bypass was discussed.   She realized at that time that the proposed
bypass would run directly through her front yard and would cut her well off from the house.  She said at the meeting in
2008 she had approached former Commissioner Eric Maxwell and she questioned him what would happen in a case
like that.  She said former Commissioner Maxwell replied, “Well, lady–I guess  you’ll just have to be real careful crossing
that road with your water bucket.” She said that was the height of disrespect and she maintained that some
Commissioners have shown no respect for the public. She said it was her understanding that there is a document







Board of Commissioners Minutes


May 12, 2011


Page 3


circulating that would prevent the people from speaking under public comment unless their comments were presented
to the Board two weeks prior to a meeting. She said she would like a little more respect from the people she voted into
office.


Gordon Furr: Gordon Furr remarked on the current economy and said he felt like every dollar was being drained out
of the taxpayers.  He expressed concern with four locations along the West Fayetteville Bypass especially West Bridge
Road.  He said he would continue to fight the West Fayetteville Bypass.


Victor Remeneski: Victor Remeneski commented on local politics. He felt the local politicians had not gotten the
message that the people sent in November, 2010.  He urged the Board to represent the people who were taking the time
to come to these meetings, express their opinions and concerns and do what is right.  He said the voters had been
awakened and they would not go to sleep again.  


Tom Halpin: Tom Halpin urged the Board to communicate transparency.  He felt there was a change of some sort at
every Commission meeting.  He questioned the qualifications of Addison Lester who replaced long time appointee
Marilyn Watts on the Board of Elections.  He said Commissioners are just as guilty of not bringing up the truth as the
person who was not bringing it up.  He said if any Commissioner has any information, it was his obligation to notify the
citizens of this County.  He also remarked that it was obvious that the citizens of Fayette County were not in favor of the
West Fayetteville Bypass.  


Ray Watt: Ray Watt questioned when Chairman Frady and Commissioner Horgan were aware of Commissioner Hearn’s
appointment to the Board of Elections and he felt they had been extremely silent.  He also commented on the possibility
of a tax increase, and pointed out that last August the County was giving out raises to employees.  He also commented
on the fact that there were no responses from Commissioners in the newspapers or elsewhere addressing the public
comments made at Board meetings.  


CONSENT AGENDA: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the consent agenda items 2-6 as presented.
Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion, discussion followed.  Commissioner Brown pointed out that item #2 was
bid out and the County had received the lowest bid for the grass mowing of McCurry Park. The motion carried 4-0.
Commissioner Hearn was absent.  


BUILDING AND GROUNDS MAINTENANCE - BID #786 - GRASS MOWING OF MCCURRY PARK:
2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #786 for Grass Mowing of McCurry Park to SSFW Landscape


Management for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2011 at a cost of $2,877 per month for seven months for an
aggregate cost of $20,139; and authorization for the Chairman to execute any subsequent contracts or
agreements once approved by the County Attorney.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof. 


FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES - PURCHASE OF MOBILE CLASSROOM FROM THE FAYETTE COUNTY
BOARD OF EDUCATION:
3. Approval of staff’s request to use grant funds to purchase a mobile classroom from the Fayette County Board


of Education and to enhance security at Fire and Emergency Services Headquarter’s Offices, including the
Emergency Operations Center.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 6", follows these minutes
and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


May 12, 2011


Page 4


FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES - DONATION OF A 40 FOOT RADIO ANTENNA:
4. Approval of staff’s request to donate a 40 foot radio antenna that is no longer in service by the County to the


local Amateur Radio Emergency Service Group.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment
No. 7", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES - EARLY WARNING WEATHER SIREN FOR LANDMARK MOBILE HOME
PARK:
5. Approval of staff’s request to replace the failed radio used to activate the Early Warning Weather Siren in


Landmark Mobile Home Park in the amount of $3,326, using funds from the County’s Contingency Account.
A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.  


  
SHERIFF’S OFFICE - AMEND OVERTIME BUDGET FOR CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS DIVISION:  
6. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Sheriff’s Office Criminal


Investigations Division by $1,455.75 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal
Agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.  


OLD BUSINESS:
7. Further discussion of a request by Commissioner Brown that the Board consider adopting Resolution


No. 2011-08 Requesting Governor Nathan Deal to Veto HB 179 which would protect the appearance of
Georgia’s highways and preserve the tree buffers owned by citizens of Georgia:


Commissioner Brown remarked that this item was discussed at the Wednesday Workshop meeting and was related to
HB 179.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 10", follows these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.  He said this Bill was on Governor Deal’s desk waiting on his signature.  He said this Bill would, in
essence, allow billboard operators to clear State owned trees along the scenic highways in order to expose billboards
on exposed property.  He said several cities and counties in metro Atlanta and across the State are sending the
Governor resolutions asking him to veto this legislation in order to protect our beautiful green spaces and to protect the
environment around those highways.  He said he had a copy of Peachtree City’s Resolution which was very similar to
the Resolution before the Board tonight.  He felt the Board should join with Peachtree City and send the message to
Governor Deal that we do not want clear cutting of our citizens’ trees on our State highways in order to expose billboards
on private property.  He pointed out that many of these billboards contain material we do not want our children reading.
He asked for the Board’s consideration to adopt this resolution.


Chairman Frady asked for the Board’s pleasure in this matter.


Commissioner Brown  made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2011-08 Requesting Governor Nathan Deal to Veto HB
179.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion, discussion followed.


Chairman Frady asked County Attorney Scott Bennett if he had reviewed the Resolution.  Attorney Bennett replied yes,
that he had reviewed it and it was in acceptable form.


Commissioner McCarty remarked that trees had been proven in several studies to reduce ozone levels along our
highways as well as replenish oxygen.  He said the trees also act as a buffer to help prevent accidents.  He said they
also provide beautiful scenery in the State of Georgia.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


May 12, 2011


Page 5


Commissioner Horgan stated that he agreed with Commissioner Brown’s comments as far as the wording on signs, but
he did not feel that HB 179 would stop that problem.  


The motion carried 3-1 with Commissioner Horgan voting in opposition.  Commissioner Hearn was absent.  A copy of
Resolution No. 2011-08, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:
None.


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS:     
Commissioner Brown: Commissioner Brown commented on a  letter received by the Commissioners from the Fayette
County Republican Party regarding their displeasure of the connections between Commissioner Hearn and Addison
Lester.  A copy of the letter, identified as “Attachment No. 12", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.
Commissioner Brown said he was also upset over the recent revelation of a non-disclosed family ownership interest in
a large parcel of land in the area of the West Fayetteville Bypass. He said when there is this much secrecy surrounding
such vital information concerning highly controversial issues, something is seriously wrong.  He said everyone in this
County now knows why Commissioner Hearn is supporting the West Fayetteville Bypass.  He said he and Commissioner
McCarty have always made it perfectly clear that the Bypass was nothing but a government welfare project for
developers and land speculators, but they did not know that there was such direct connections to the Board of
Commissioners.  He said for the past year and a half he had witnessed desperate attempts at manipulating public
opinion on the West Fayetteville Bypass by members who made up the previous Board of Commissioners.  He said they
have pointed to engineering reports from companies like StreetSmarts as justification, but those documents give
absolutely no reason whatsoever to make the West Fayetteville Bypass a priority project.  He said at least Fayetteville
Mayor Ken Steele admitted the Bypass and the land surrounding it was all about development and not traffic.  He said
Mayor Steele just happened to have the same Board of Elections and Voter Registration appointee and land trust owner
on his Development Authority.  He said the Mayor will control the annexation and development powers in that area.  He
said to borrow from the movie Lion King we are looking at the circle of exploitation when it comes to public trust.  He said
the hush from the Chairman and the Vice Chairman on these issues would appear to him to be endorsement of bad
behavior.  He said there were only a few reasons to engage in such secrecy and manipulation and all point to selfish
ends.  He said Commissioner Hearn’s excuses for appointing a relative to the Board of Elections and Voter Registration
were laughable. He said his lack of a reason for intentionally not disclosing a family land interest near a highly expensive,
very controversial, totally unjustified county road project that he has been involved with as an elected official for nearly
four years and as a county staff member before that is totally inexcusable.  


Commissioner Brown questioned if is was in the citizens’ best interest that they be deceived continuously by an elected
official. He asked moreover, do the ends justify the means.  He asked if secrecy and manipulation were normally required
for a large capital project that is in the best interests of the citizens of our county. He said of course not, and any other
response would be an insult to our intelligence.  He said we have reached the point where a formal investigation is
required because we can no longer trust the elected officials in question.  He said he would leave his comments there
pending further action.   


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty remarked that whatever the Board of Commissioners do or whatever
happens, every Commissioner must be open and must divulge all of the secrets that they are aware of.  He said to be
aware and not divulge is wrong.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


May 12, 2011


Page 6


He remarked that he had previously commented on the Yates apple being developed in Fayette County many years ago.
He noted that the developer of that apple Mr. Yates was buried in the Primitive Baptist Church cemetery on New Hope
Road and SR 92.  He also remarked that the mother tree for the Yates apple was right in the path of the West
Fayetteville Bypass and if that road continues across SR 92 it would take out the mother tree for the Yates apple.  He
said Fayette County would lose a national landmark.  


Chairman Frady: Chairman Frady commented on a meeting he attended yesterday with representatives of Douglas
County regarding the TIA (Transportation Investment Act) Program.  He said this requires Fayette County to meet with
a sister county to discuss priority road lists for the TIA.  He said there should be a final number of roads listed that would
be available through this project some time in August.  


ADJOURNMENT:  Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Commissioner McCarty made a
motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:48 p.m.  Commissioner Brown seconded the motion.  The motion carried
4-0.  Commissioner Hearn was absent.  


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk             Herbert E. Frady, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 26  day of May, 2011.th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


May 26, 2011
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda.


PUBLIC HEARING


1. Consideration of a Packaged Beer and Wine License for Chevron Food Mart,
1488 SR 92 South, Fayetteville, Georgia, Ram Niwas, Inc., Owner, and
Jaymin Patel, Applicant.  This property is located in Land Lot 256 of the 13th


District, fronts on SR 92 South, and is zoned C-H.  This is for a Change of
Ownership.


2. Consideration of a Packaged Beer and Wine License for Flint River Store,
2664 SR 92 South, Fayetteville, Georgia, Larry and Beverly Corbin, Owners,
and Beverly Corbin, Applicant.  This property is located in Land Lot 117 of the
4th District, fronts on SR 92 South, and is zoned C-H.  This is for a New
Location.


3. Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article III. Definitions, Sec. 3-1.
and Article V. General Provisions, Sec. 5-47.  Standards for
Telecommunications Antennas and Towers.


PUBLIC COMMENT


HEARING


4. Athena Schwantes has requested a hearing before the Board of
Commissioners concerning a request for tax exemptions (this hearing is not


considered a “public hearing”–  no public comment will be permitted for this
agenda item).


CONSENT AGENDA


5. Approval of staff’s request to transfer $8,000 from Animal Control’s Restricted
Donation Account to the department’s existing Capital Project C-5041
Account for the purchase of two cat cages.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Clearing and Grubbing Bid #789
to the low bidder, Rhino Services, LLC., in the amount of $87,891.00.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Herb Frady, Chairman


Robert Horgan, Vice Chairman
Steve Brown
Lee Hearn


Allen McCarty


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
May 26, 2011
Page Number 2


7. Approval of staff’s request to increase the Library’s Fiscal Year 2011 Donations Revenue Account and the
Subscriptions and Books Expenditure Account by $110.00 to recognize donations to the Library.


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Proposal #788 to Mike Wright & Co., d/b/a Wright’s Hydroseeding,
establishing an annual contract for the installation of soil erosion and sediment control measures on various
Public Work projects, in an amount not to exceed $154,586.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #787 for dust control on gravel roads to South Eastern Road
Treatment for the application of calcium chloride at the rate of $0.24 per square yard for a total amount not to
exceed $47,648.00.


10. Approval of staff’s request to amend the Lakeridge III Street Light District to include one additional street light.


11. Approval of recommendations from the Tax Assessor’s Office regarding requests for tax refunds.


12. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office
Criminal Investigations Division by $8,861.41 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various
Federal Agencies.


13. Approval of the Board of Commissioners April 28, 2011 Minutes, the Board of Commissioners May 4, 2011
Workshop Minutes, and the May 12, 2011 Board of Commissioners Minutes.


NEW BUSINESS


14. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to renew the County’s agreement for excess Workers’ Compensation
insurance and claims service with Midwest Employers Casualty Company, for one year, in the amount of
$85,927.


15. Consideration of a request from staff to approve Ordinance 2011-04, authorizing the Purchasing Department
to purchase fuel, based on the lowest bid available, at a cost not to exceed $30,000 per bid in order to minimize
the impact of price volatility, and for the Purchasing Director to provide a quarterly report to the Board
concerning fuel purchases.


16. Consideration of the City of Fayetteville’s request for the Fayette County Road Department to resurface and
stripe two segments of Redwine Road within Fayetteville’s city limits.


17. Consideration of staff’s request to allocate $250,000 of Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) 321
funds for the employment of temporary staff to assist with the construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass,
Phase II (R-5) and other SPLOST projects.


18. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to award engineering and design services for the proposed Veteran’s
Parkway Bridge (WFB-2) over Whitewater Creek to Heath & Lineback Engineers, Inc., in an amount not to
exceed $133,238.


19. Engineering staff will provide an update on the proposed design for SPLOST Project FC-15, intersection
improvements at Goza Road, Inman Road, and State Route 92.







Agenda
May 26, 2011
Page Number 3


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS


COMMISSIONERS REPORTS


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Animal Control Fred R. Sisson


Approval of staff's request to transfer $8,000 from Animal Control's Restricted Donation Account to the department's existing Capital 


Project C-5041 Account for the purchase of two cat cages.


The Fayette County Animal Shelter has an existing Capital Project Account designated for the purchase and replacement of new cat 


cages, and the current balance in the account is $3,297. 


 


On January 7, 2011 the Animal Shelter received an $8,000 donation from a private citizen, who wishes to remain anonymous, specifically 


for the purchase of cat cages. 


 


Animal Control staff has obtained a quote from Shor-Line for two of the three needed cat cages in the amount of $9,421.98.  Staff, 


therefore, is requesting that the $8,000 donation be transferred from the Restricted Donation Budget  to the existing Capital Project 


C-5041 Account for the purchase of the cat cages, and with the remaining difference of funds to remain in the Capital Project Account 


until the third cat cage can be purchased. 


 


Approval of staff's request to transfer $8,000 from Animal Control's Restricted Donation Account to the department's existing Capital 


Project C-5041 Account for the purchase of two cat cages.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, May 26, 2011









		Animal Control- Cat Cages Agenda Request File.pdf

		Animal Control- Cat Cages Backup 






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Connie Boehnke


Consideration of staff's recommendation to renew the County's agreement for excess Workers' Compensation insurance and claims 


service with Midwest Employers Casualty Company, for one year, in the amount of $85,927.


Fayette County's Workers' Compensation coverage is a "self-insured" arrangement utilizing third parties for excess insurance and claims 


administration.  The County has utilized Midwest Employers Casualty Company for excess insurance and claims service since 2000.  


The County switched from Underwriters' Safety and Claims, Inc. to Affinity Service Group on January 1, 2011 as the third party 


administrator for workers' compensation claims administration.  


 


Other excess coverage providers were invited to bid, however Midwest was the only vendor that chose to do so.  


 


Staff recommends a one year renewal with Midwest for excess insurance with a specific retention of $400,000 at a rate of .2761 per $100 


of payroll.  This rate reflects a 40% increase over the current rate. 


$61,126 = Current rate 


$85,927 = New Rate for FY 2012  


 


Renewal rate specifics are attached for your review.


Approval of staff's recommendation to renew the County's agreement with Midwest Employment Casualty Company for a period of one 


year,in the amount of $85,927, for Workers' Compensation excess insurance and claims service.


These funds reside in the Workers' Compensation Self-Insured Fund.


Yes Thursday, April 22, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 26, 2011







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners 
  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Connie Boehnke 
     
Date:  May 12, 2011 
 
Subject: Workers’ Compensation Insurance Renewal 
 
Attached is a copy of the proposed renewal for excess workers’ compensation coverage and claims 
service with Midwest Employers Casualty Company.  The County has utilized Midwest Employers 
Casualty Company for excess insurance and claims service since 2000.  The County switched from 
Underwriters' Safety and Claims, Inc. to Affinity Service Group on January 1, 2011 as the third party 
administrator for workers' compensation claims administration.  Other excess coverage providers 
were invited to bid, however Midwest was the only vendor that chose to do so. 
 
Human Resources is recommending renewing for another one year contract at a cost of $85,927.  
This is a rate of .2761 per $100 of payroll, which reflects an overall increase of 40%.  Self-insured 
retention will increase from $350,000 to $400,000 for all employees.  As in the past, aircraft 
coverage is included in this rate quote.  The service period is from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012.   
 
The workers’ compensation segment of the insurance industry has been under assault for the past 
two years during the down turn in the economy.  The result has been an increase in rates across the 
board for all excess coverage for both self funded and self insured clients.  The main issue is in the 
governmental and community workers compensation arena where nationwide claims have sky 
rocketed.  Layoffs and cut backs to staff in these areas has produced increased claims activity.  Since 
this increase in claims activity was not projected in the actuarial calculations, the insurance industry 
is playing catch by increasing rates across the board.  Local governments and municipalities who 
have had poor claims experience will suffer greater increases in rates.  Fortunately Fayette County 
has had rather good claims experience over the years but is nonetheless feeling the effect of the 
industry wide rate increases that are being instituted. 
 
           
 
      
 
    


 
      

















		Human Resources- Workers Compensation Agenda Request File.pdf

		Human Resources- Workers Compensation Backup

		Excess WC Renewal Narrative 5-12-2011.pdf

		2011 WC Renewal Quote








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Library Chris Snell


Approval of staff's request to increase the Library's Fiscal Year 2011 Donations Revenue Budget Account  and the Subscriptions and  
Books Expenditure Account by $110.00 to recognize donations to the Library.


The Fayette County Library has received a $100 donation from David Aycock and a $10 donation from Janis L. Hall.  These donations 
are undesignated and are intended for the library's general use. 
 
The Library intends to purchase books and materials to enhance its collection. 
 
The Library requests the Board's approval to increase its Fiscal Year 2011 Donations Revenue Budget Account and its Subscriptions and 
Books Expenditure Budget by $110 to account for the donation. 


Approval to increase the Library's Donation Revenue Account by $110.00 and to increase the Subscriptions and Books Expenditures 
Account by $110.00 to recognize donations made to the Fayette County Library.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentMay 26, 2011








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Peter A. Frisina/Dennis Dutton


Consideration of  a Packaged Beer and Wine License for Chevron Food Mart, 1488 SR 92 South, Fayetteville, Georgia, Ram Niwas, Inc., 


Owner, and Jaymin Patel, Applicant.  This property is located in Land Lot 256 of the 13th District, fronts on SR 92 South, and is zoned C-


H.  This is for a Change of Ownership.


This application is for a Change of Ownership.  The fingerprints/background checks have been sent to the GCIC and the FBI and the 


results have been reviewed and approved by the Marshal's Office.  The application and survey were reviewed and approved by the 


County Attorney.  The application and site are in compliance with the alcoholic requirements.


Approval of a Packaged Beer and Wine License, for a Change of Ownership, to Chevron Food Mart, 1488 SR 92 South, Fayetteville, 


Georgia, Ram Niwas, Inc., Owner, and Jaymin Patel Applicant, at the property located in Land Lot 256 of the 13th District, fronting on SR 


92 South, and zoned C-H.


Not applicable


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, May 26, 2011





		Planning and Zoning- Chevron Food Mart Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Chevron Food Mart Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina/Dennis Dutton


Consideration of  a Packaged Beer and Wine License for Flint River Store, 2664 SR 92 South, Fayetteville, Georgia, Larry and Beverly 


Corbin, Owners, and Beverly Corbin, Applicant.  This property is located in Land Lot 117 of the 4th District, fronts on SR 92 South, and is 


zoned C-H.  This is for a New Location.


This application is for a New Location.  The fingerprints/background checks have been sent to the GCIC and the FBI and the results have 


been reviewed and approved by the Marshal's Office.  The application and survey were reviewed and approved by the County Attorney.  


The application and site are in compliance with the alcoholic requirements.


Approval of a Packaged Beer and Wine License, for a New Location, to Flint River Store, 2664 SR 92 South, Fayetteville, Georgia, Larry 


and Beverly Corbin, Owners, and Beverly Corbin, Applicant, for property located in Land Lot 117 of the 4th District, fronting on SR 92 


South, and zoned C-H.


Not Applicable


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, May 26, 2011





		Planning and Zoning- Flint River Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Flint River Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina/Dennis Dutton


Consideration of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article III. Definitions, 


Sec. 3-1. and Article V. General Provisions, Sec. 5-47.  Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers.   


On December 9, 2010, the revised Zoning Ordinance was adopted in its entirety.  Since implementation, staff has discovered minor 


housekeeping revisions regarding the application submittal process.  The Planning Commission held a Workshop on March 17  to 


discuss the proposed amendments.  On April 6 and April 14, staff presented the proposed amendments to the Board of Commissioners.  


The Board of Commissioners authorized staff to advertise the proposed amendments for  public hearings before the Planning 


Commission and the Board of Commissioners for adoption.  The proposed amendments are basically "housekeeping" items and 


clarification of the definition of a Planned Tower. 


 


The Planning Commission recommended:  APPROVAL 5-0.


Approval of Ordinance 2011-03 authorizing proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning 


Ordinance, Article III. Definitions, Sec. 3-1. and Article V. General Provisions, Sec. 5-47.  Standards for Telecommunications Antennas 


and Towers.    


Funds are not needed at this time, but will be part of an overall cost to update the Fayette County Code.


Yes Thursday, April 14, 2011


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, May 26, 2011











































































































 


 


1 


STATE OF GEORGIA; 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


 ORDINANCE NO.  2011 - 03 


 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 20. 
ZONING ORDINANCE (2010), AS AMENDED, SPECIFICALLY ARTICLE III (DEFINITIONS) AND 
ARTICLE V (GENERAL PROVISIONS) SO AS TO AMEND THE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS ANTENNAS AND TOWERS; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO 
REPEAL CONFLICTING LAWS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES ALLOWED BY LAW. 
  


 WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of Fayette County is the Board of Commissioners 
thereof; 
 


 WHEREAS, the governing authority desires to amend the provision that provides for the regulation of 
land development as allowed by the State of Georgia; 
 


 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Fayette County, Georgia shall be 
improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 
 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE COUNTY AND IT IS 


HEREBY ORDAINED BY AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 


Section I.  The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as amended, is 
hereby further amended by amending Sec. 3-1. Tower Facility; Tower, Planned; and  
Tower structure, Alternative, to read as follows: 


  


 Tower  Facility.  The area containing a tower, antennas, all accessory equipment cabinets or buildings, and 
required security fencing, excluding tower anchors. 


  
 Tower, Planned.  Any tower that is in the public hearing procedure, site application process or has been 


approved, but not yet constructed (see Article V.) 
  
 Tower structure, Alternative.  Tower structures designed to diminish, camouflage, or conceal the appearance 


of antennas or towers including:  monopine (man-made pine trees), free-standing clock towers and bell 
towers, light poles, flag poles, internal antenna towers (a/k/a “slick stick”) including cylindrical unicells 
and/or similar alternative design tower structures. 


 


Section II.  The Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance (2010), as amended, is 
hereby further amended by deleting Sec. 5-47. (Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers) 
and in lieu thereof, enacting a new Section Sec. 5-47. (Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and 
Towers) to read as follows: 


 


 Sec. 5-47.  Standards for Telecommunications Antennas and Towers.    


 A. Purpose and Intent.  The purpose of this ordinance is to establish minimum development standards 
 for the regulation of commercial telecommunications transmission towers, including, but not limited 
 to: cellular and Personal Communications Systems (PCS) towers, broadcasting towers, two-way 
 radio towers, fixed-point microwave dishes, commercial satellites and receiving dishes, and related 







 


 


2 


 equipment cabinets and/or buildings.  The  intent of this ordinance is: (1) to implement the 
 provisions of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, on a local level; (2) to control placement of 
 towers and antennas in a way that minimizes the adverse visual impact to nearby properties by 
 locating towers and antennas in non-residential areas or in areas where the adverse impact on the 
 community is minimal; and (3) to advocate the shared use of new and existing tower sites through 
 co-location, thereby discouraging the proliferation of towers throughout Fayette County.   


 B. Authority.  Only the Board of Commissioners has the authority to reduce or waive the requirements 
 under this section through the public hearing procedure. 


 C. Applicability.     


 1. District Height Limitations.  Height limits specified for each zoning district shall not apply 
to towers and antennas.  The requirements set forth herein shall govern the height of towers and 
antennas. 


 2. Governmentally Owned Property.  These requirements shall not apply to any 
governmentally owned property, including: properties owned by the Board of Commissioners, Board 
of Education, or a municipality, as well as, the State or Federal government, that are used for the 
location of any tower facility.   


 3. Amateur Radio Antennas.  This ordinance shall not govern any amateur radio tower, or the 
installation of any antenna, that is less than 70 feet in height and is owned and operated by a 
federally-licensed amateur radio station operator. 


 4. Pre-Existing Towers and Antennas.   
a. Any tower or antenna which existed prior to December 10, 1998, that does not comply with 


the requirements herein shall be deemed legally nonconforming.  Any enlargement of a pre-
existing tower or tower facility, shall meet the requirements herein.  Co-location of an 
antenna which does not increase the height of the tower or placement of additional 
equipment cabinets or buildings within the existing tower facility shall be allowed under the 
provisions of Site Plan Requirements.   


b. Replacement of a pre-existing legally nonconforming tower structure is permitted provided 
that all of the following apply:   
i. The replacement tower is constructed within 25 feet of the existing tower and is not 


greater in height than the existing tower. 
ii. The tower being replaced is removed from site within 90 calendar days from the 


issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for the replacement tower; 
iii. Additional co-location opportunities on the new tower are made available with the 


minimum users required based on tower height; and 
iv. A site plan indicating the location of the replacement tower shall be required. 


 D. General Requirements. 


 1. Towers and tower facilities shall be on a lot which meets the minimum lot size for the 
zoning district in which it is located.  Towers and tower facilities may be located on a lot containing 
another use.  Towers and tower facilities may occupy a leased area being a portion of the lot. 


 2. Internal setbacks for towers, tower facilities, and anchors shall be measured to the 
boundaries of the lot, not the boundaries of the leased area.  Setbacks for towers shall be measured 
from the base of the tower. 
a. All towers shall be set back from all adjoining properties zoned residential or A-R a distance 


equal to the height of the tower plus 10 feet. 
b. All towers shall be set back from all adjoining properties zoned non-residential a distance of 


100 feet. 
c. All towers shall be set back from the street right-of-way (existing or required) a distance 


equal to the height of the tower.  Street right-of-way is based on the classification of the 
street (see County Code, Development Regulations.) 


d. All towers, excluding alternative tower structures, shall be set back from any off-site 







 


 


3 


residence a distance equal to three (3) times the tower height or a minimum of 500 feet, 
whichever is greater.  


e. Any tower facility and anchors for guyed towers shall comply with the minimum required 
setbacks and/or buffers of the applicable zoning district. 


3. Towers located on the same lot as a private school or day care center shall be set back a distance 
equal to the height of the tower from all facilities, excluding parking areas. This provision shall not 
apply to an alternative tower structure which is allowed in conjunction with a Private School 
Conditional Use. 


4. All towers, excluding alternative tower structures, shall be structurally designed to accommodate the 
following minimum numbers of carriers based on height of the tower: 
a. up to 70 feet : one (1) carrier; 
b. greater than 70 up to 120 feet : two (2) carriers;  
c. greater than 120 feet up to 150 feet : three (3) carriers; 
d. greater than 150 feet up to 180 feet : four (4) carriers;  
e. greater than 180 feet up to 250 feet : five (5) carriers; and  
f. greater than 250 feet: six (6) carriers. 


5. All tower facilities, excluding tower facilities associated with alternative tower structures, shall be 
enclosed by a steel chain link fence not less than eight (8) feet in height, with slat inserts for 
screening.  Access to the telecommunication tower shall be through a locking gate. In addition, a 
minimum of three (3) strands of barbed wire shall be used along the top of the fence to prevent 
unauthorized access to the tower. 


6. A landscaped strip 10 feet in width surrounding the perimeter of the tower facility shall be required. 
Landscaping shall be staggered double rows of evergreen trees a minimum of six (6) feet in height 
when planted and spaced every 10 feet on center.  Landscaping shall be installed on the outside of 
the required security fence.  Existing mature tree growth and natural land forms on the site shall be 
preserved to the maximum extent possible.  In some cases, such as towers sited on large wooded lots, 
the Zoning Administrator may determine that natural growth around the property perimeter may be 
sufficient in lieu of the required landscaping. If existing vegetation is to remain and requested to 
count toward the landscaping requirements, all such information, including location, size, and type 
of vegetation shall be indicated on the site/landscape plan.  These requirements shall not apply to a 
tower facility associated with an alternative tower structure. 


7. Maximum height for all towers and antennas is 500 feet.  Tower height shall be measured from the 
natural grade of the ground at the location of the tower to the highest point of the tower, including 
any antenna.  If minimal grading (elevation of one [1] to two [2)] feet above natural grade) is 
required to level the ground for the tower base, tower height shall be measured from the finished 
grade approved by the County Engineer. 


8. No signage shall be placed on a tower structure or antenna.  
9. Inventory of Existing or Planned Tower Sites.  No new tower shall be permitted unless the applicant 


demonstrates to the satisfaction of the County that no existing tower or any planned towers can 
accommodate the applicant=s proposed antenna.  All evidence shall be signed and sealed by 
appropriate licensed professionals or qualified industry experts.  All of the following shall be 
required to sufficiently demonstrate that no existing or planned tower can accommodate the proposed 
antenna: 
a. Each applicant for a new tower and antenna shall contact the owners of all existing and 


planned tower sites, including those located within the zoning jurisdictions of municipalities 
and/or other counties, that are within the search area of the applicant=s proposed tower or 
antenna location, and provide the Planning and Zoning Department with an inventory of 
said tower sites at the time of application submittal.  


 The inventory shall include the following information: 
i. All tower owners and the number of carriers for each tower site; 







 


 


4 


ii. The site location, total height, and design type of each tower; 
iii. Details of all existing and planned towers or structures located within the search 


area and the ability of such to meet the applicant=s engineering requirements, 
including, but not limited to: sufficient height, structural support strength, and 
electromagnetic interference with antenna(s) on the existing towers or structures; 


iv. Other limiting factors that render existing towers and structures unsuitable; and 
v. Letters of rejection for requests to co-locate on all existing and planned towers 


within the service area of the proposed tower. 
b. The Planning and Zoning Department may share such information with other applicants 


applying for approval under this ordinance or other organizations seeking to locate antennas 
within the jurisdiction of the governing authority, provided; however, that the Planning and 
Zoning Department is not, by sharing such information, in any way representing or 
warranting that such sites are available or suitable. 


c. If it is determined that the applicant cannot feasibly locate an antenna on an existing tower 
or planned tower, the applicant shall demonstrate that the proposed new tower is designed to 
accommodate the required number of carriers.   


10. Aesthetics and Lighting Requirements.  The following compatibility standards shall govern the 
aesthetics and lighting of any tower facility, including the installation of antennas on towers. 
a. Towers shall either maintain a galvanized steel finish or, subject to any applicable standards 


of the FAA, be painted a neutral color, so as to reduce visual obtrusiveness. 
b. If an antenna is installed on a structure other than a tower, the antenna and equipment 


cabinets shall be architecturally compatible with, the color and texture of the supporting 
structure. Roof mounted equipment cabinets shall be screened so as to make the equipment 
visually unobtrusive. 


c. Towers shall not be artificially lighted, unless required by the FAA or other applicable 
authority.  If lighting is required, the governing authority may review the available lighting 
alternatives and approve the design that would cause the least disturbance to the 
surrounding views. 


11. Federal Requirements.  All towers shall meet current standards and regulations of the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA), the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), and any other 
agency of the federal government with the authority to regulate towers and antenna, including 
modulation studies on frequency usage, to avoid interference with existing systems in operation.   


12. Building Codes and Safety Standard Requirements.  To ensure the structural integrity of towers, the 
owner of a tower shall ensure that it is maintained in compliance with standards contained in 
applicable local building codes and the applicable standards for towers that are published by the 
Electronic Industries Association, as amended.  If, upon inspection, the governing authority 
concludes that a tower fails to comply with such codes and standards or that such tower constitutes a 
danger to persons or property, then upon notice being provided to the owner of the tower, the owner 
shall have 60 days to bring such tower into compliance. 


13. Removal of Abandoned Antennas and Towers.  Prior to the abandonment of any tower or antenna, a 
copy of the notice of Intent to Abandon required by the FCC shall also be submitted to the Fayette 
County Planning and Zoning Department.  Any antenna or tower, including pre-existing towers and 
antennas, that is not in use for a continuous period of 12 months shall be considered abandoned, and 
the owner of such antenna or tower shall remove same within 90 days of receipt of notice from the 
governing authority notifying the owner of such abandonment.  If there are two (2) or more users of 
a single tower, then this provision shall not become effective until all users cease using the tower. 


14. Performance Bond Required.  Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for a new tower 
structure, every applicant shall be required to deposit a performance bond with Fayette County.  The 
amount of the bond shall be equal to 10 percent of the total construction cost or a minimum of 
$5,000, whichever is greater.  Such bond shall be required upon compliance with all aspects of this 







 


 


5 


section and shall be applicable to any assignee and owner of any permit granted hereunder, or any 
employee, contractor, subcontractor, or other party performing services in connection with any 
Certificate of Zoning Compliance issued by the Planning and Zoning Department.  The required 
performance bond shall be released only upon demolition of the tower and restoration of the site to 
the pre-development conditions.  The approved format of the bond is available in the Planning and 
Zoning Department. 


 E. Supplemental Requirements. In addition to the General Requirements above, the following 
 Supplemental Requirements shall apply as specified below. 
1. Highway Corridor.   Locating towers along the following highway corridors is permitted as an 


overlay zone provided all the following requirements are met: 
a. The State and County Highways included within the Highway Corridor are S.R. 54, S.R. 85, 


S.R. 92, S.R. 74, S.R. 314, S.R. 279, S.R. 138, and 85 Connector. 
b. The Highway Corridor tower overlay zone permits towers in any zoning district when 


located within 1,000 feet of the right-of-way on either side of the aforementioned roads in 
unincorporated areas of Fayette County. 


c. Towers in excess of 250 feet in height in the Highway Corridor shall require public hearings 
before the Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners. 


d. All new towers, excluding alternative tower structures, located within the Highway Corridor 
that are 70 feet or greater in height shall not be located within one (1) statute mile from any 
existing or planned towers (within any local government jurisdiction) that are 70 feet or 
greater in height.  This minimum distance requirement shall not apply from existing 
governmentally-owned towers where co-location is not permitted or from alternative tower 
structures. 


2. Outside of the Highway Corridor. 
a. Outside of the Highway Corridor, a tower may be located only in the following zoning 


districts: 
Manufacturing and Heavy Industrial District (M-2); 
Light Industrial District (M-1); 
Highway Commercial District (C-H); 
Community Commercial District (C-C); 
Agricultural Residential (A-R); and 
R-70 Single-Family Residential District. 


b. Towers in excess of 180 feet in height outside of the Highway Corridor shall require public 
hearings before the Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners. 


c. All new towers, excluding alternative tower structures,  located  outside of the Highway 
Corridor that are 70 feet or greater in height shall not be located within one and one-half 
(1.50) statute miles from any existing or planned towers (within any local government 
jurisdiction) that are 70 feet or greater in height.  This minimum distance requirement shall 
not apply from existing government-owned towers where co-location is not permitted or 
from alternative tower structures. 


3. Alternative Tower Structures. 


a. The purpose of an alternative tower structure is to diminish, camouflage, or conceal the 
appearance of towers and antennas to reduce the visual impact on surrounding properties 
and streets. Depending on the nature of the site, the proposed alternative tower structure 
shall be appropriate and in character with its surroundings.  For example, the use of a 
monopine is more fitting on a site with stands of mature trees; whereas, the use of a flag 
pole or light pole alternative tower structure is more suitable for the developed portion of a 
site. 


b. Alternative tower structures shall comply with the General Requirements herein with the 
exception of the setback requirements from off-site residences, security fencing 







 


 


6 


requirements, landscape requirements, and tower separation requirements of both the 
Highway Corridor and outside of the Highway Corridor.  Alternative tower structures shall 
be allowed in the Highway Corridor, outside of the Highway Corridor in the zoning districts 
listed herein, and in conjunction with the following existing Conditional Uses: 
i. Church or Other Place of Worship; 
ii. Developed Residential Recreational/Amenity Areas;  
iii. Private School; and 
iv. Telephone, Electric, or Gas Sub-Station or Other Public Utility Facilities. 


c. Alternative tower structures, in conjunction with the above listed Conditional Uses, shall 
meet the setbacks established in the General Requirements or the Conditional Use setbacks, 
whichever is greater. 


d An alternative tower in excess of 120 feet in height shall require public hearings before the 
Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners. 


e. A maximum of one (1) alternative tower structure shall be allowed per lot.  
f. The alternative tower structure shall match the visual simulation depiction and engineering 


detail and specification drawings from the manufacturer/supplier of the alternative tower 
structure specifically proposed for the site. 


g. Design Review and Approval Process:  Alternative tower structures shall go through a 
Design Review and Approval Process before the Planning Commission.  
The purpose of this Design Review and Approval Process is to determine that the alternative 
tower structure type is appropriate for the site and surrounding area and set requirements for 
the alternative tower structure type, placement on the site, equipment structures, fencing and 
landscaping. 
The Design Review and Approval Process application shall include the following: 
i. An analysis of the nature and character of the site and how the alternative tower 


structure is appropriate in context to the site and the view from surrounding 
properties and streets;  


ii. A visual simulation consisting of color photographs of the proposed site with the 
existing view and with a depiction of the proposed tower, from a minimum of four 
(4) distinct quadrants (generally north, east, south, and west), to demonstrate the 
visual impact on surrounding properties and streets; and 


iii. Engineering detail and specification drawings from the manufacturer/ supplier of 
the alternative tower structure specifically proposed for the site which shall indicate 
all applicable requirements herein. 


h. Monopine Towers. 
i. Monopine towers shall maintain the natural conical appearance of a loblolly pine 


tree. Antennas shall be placed a minimum of five (5) feet below the top of the 
tower, as measured from the highest point of the antenna to maintain said 
appearance. 


ii. Foliage shall be green in color and the tower shall be brown in color.   The antennas 
shall be green to blend with the foliage and the foliage shall extend a minimum of 
one (1) foot beyond the antennas.  The foliage shall be UV resistant to reduce 
degradation and fading and constructed to withstand winds of 110 MPH, 
certification of such shall be supplied with the application.   Foliage shall be placed 
on the tower down to the height of the foliage of surrounding trees.  The structure 
shall have sufficient limbs at the time of initial installation so that there is no gap 
between the existing canopy and the lower most limbs of the monopine. 


iii. The installation of the foliage on the monopine shall be installed prior to final 
inspections.  Foliage on the monopine shall be maintained and/or replaced to the 
specifications established by the engineering detail and specification drawings from 







 


 


7 


the manufacturer/supplier of the alternative tower structure specifically proposed 
for the site to retain the screening of the antennas.  Upon notice from the County 
that the foliage is in need of maintenance and/or replacement, the tower owner shall 
have 90 days to make such repairs. 


i. Flag pole and light pole alternative tower structures shall utilize internal antennas and slick 
stick design.  Flag poles utilized as an alternative tower structure shall be exempt from the 
Article V.  


 F. Public Hearings Required to Reduce or Waive Requirements. 
1. Public hearings before the Planning Commission and Board of Commissioners are necessary to 


reduce or waive requirements for a proposed tower, antenna, or equipment cabinet or building that 
cannot comply with the General Requirements, and/or Supplemental Requirements.  The procedure 
for said public hearings shall follow the procedure for rezoning (see Article XI.)  Applicants shall 
apply for public hearings through the Planning and Zoning Department.  The application with 
deadline submittal and public hearing dates is available in the Planning and Zoning Department. The 
application shall include the following:  
a. A scaled Concept Plan, drawn on the signed/sealed survey, graphically indicating the lot and 


leased area, total tower height including antennas, type and design of the tower structure, the 
boundary of the tower facility, all applicable setbacks (both on and off-site), ingress/egress, 
landscaping areas, and zoning of the subject property and adjacent property; 


b. An Inventory of Existing or Planned Tower Sites per the standards listed under 
Supplemental Requirements; 


c. A balloon test shall be conducted prior to the public hearings.  The balloon shall be flown 
for a minimum of four (4) daylight hours from the location of the proposed tower, at the 
requested height.  The application shall include the date and time of the balloon test and an 
alternative date, in case of inclement weather. The initial balloon test shall be held on a 
Saturday and the alternative date may be held on any day of the week.  A sign announcing 
the dates of the balloon test shall be posted on the property by the County a minimum of 
five (5) calendar days prior to the initial balloon test; and 


d. The applicant shall submit a visual simulation, based on the balloon test, a minimum of 
seven (7) calendar days prior to the Planning Commission public hearing.  Failure to meet 
this deadline will postpone the tower application to the next scheduled cycle of public 
hearings.   The visual simulation shall consist of color photographs of the proposed site with 
the existing view and with a depiction of the proposed tower, from a minimum of four (4) 
distinct quadrants (generally north, east, south, and west), to demonstrate the visual impact 
on surrounding properties and streets.  An Affidavit certifying that the correct location and 
height of the tower were utilized in the balloon test shall be submitted with the visual 
simulation photographs. 


2. Factors Considered in Public Hearing Applications.  The following factors shall be considered 
when evaluating a tower application: 
a. Height of the proposed tower; 
b. Distance of the tower to residential structures and residential zoning district boundaries; 
c. Nature of uses on adjacent and nearby properties; 
d. Topography of the site and its effect on the efficiency of the tower in terms of coverage; 
e. Surrounding tree coverage and foliage and its effect on the efficiency of the tower in terms 


of coverage, as well as, its effect on the visual impact of the tower on surrounding properties 
and streets; 


f. Design of the tower, with particular reference to design characteristics that have the effect of 
reducing or eliminating visual obtrusiveness; 


g. Proposed ingress and egress; and 
h. The degree of the tower’s compliance with the one (1) statute mile separation (inside the 







 


 


8 


Highway Corridor) or one and one-half (1.5) statute mile separation (outside the Highway 
Corridor.)  


In granting its approval to waive or reduce requirements, the County, through the Board of 
Commissioners or its designee, may impose conditions that are necessary to minimize the adverse 
effect of a proposed tower or antenna on adjoining property. A site application shall be submitted 
within 60 days of the date of approval by the Board of Commissioners or the proposed tower will no 
longer be deemed a planned tower.   


 G. Site Application Requirements.  All applicants for new tower construction shall include the 
 following:  
a. completed application forms signed and notarized; 
b. proof of ownership of the parent tract (latest recorded Warranty Deed); 
c. site plan prepared by an Engineer, Architect, or Landscape Architect registered by the State of 


Georgia; 
d. landscape plans (see General Requirements); 
e. provide number of carriers based on maximum height of tower; 
f. provide inventory of Existing or Planned Tower Sites (see General Requirements);   
g. a report including all tower specifications and a description of the tower with technical reasons for its 


design;  
h. documentation establishing the structural integrity for the tower=s proposed uses;  
i. the general capacity of the tower and information necessary to assure that ANSI standards are met;  
j. a statement of intent on whether excess space will be leased;  
k. a copy of the Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation from the FAA; and   
l. a copy of the Carrier’s FCC license (as applicable for an antenna). 
Site Plan Requirements.  All tower applicants for new towers shall be required to submit a scaled site plan 
which complies with all applicable requirements of the Development Regulations (see County Code.)  
Additional information indicated on the site plan shall include: 
a. a signed/sealed survey by a land surveyor registered in the State of Georgia of the parent tract, leased 


area, and ingress/egress easement, indicating the metes and bounds for each; 
b. total tower height including antennas; 
c. type and design of any tower facility, including  location of equipment buildings or cabinets; 


 d. distance from nearest off-site residences; 
e. fencing and gate details; 
f. all applicable setbacks for the tower, tower facility, and anchors for guyed tower, as applicable; 
g. distance between towers; 
h. zoning and acreage of parent tract;  
i. zoning of  adjacent property; and  
j. other information necessary to assess compliance with this ordinance.   
Any information of an engineering nature that the applicant submits, whether civil, mechanical, or electrical, 
shall be certified by a licensed professional engineer.  Site plan submittal shall include completion of a tower 
application, signed and notarized by both the property owner and the tower company representative/agent.  


The following scenarios shall not require submittal of a site plan: 
a. Installing an antenna on an existing structure, so long as said installation adds no more than 


20 feet to the height of said existing structure (including buildings, light/utility poles, water 
towers, or other free standing non-residential structures excluding signs and towers.) 


b. Co-locating an antenna on any existing tower, so long as, said installation does not exceed 
the maximum height of administrative tower approval for that location and complies with all 
applicable conditions of approval associated with the tower site. 


c. Enlargement of an existing equipment building, or placement of additional equipment 
cabinets or buildings at a tower site which does not require an enlargement of the existing 
tower facility. 







 


 


9 


 
Prior to the placement or co-location of any antenna, enlargement of an existing equipment building, or 
placement of additional equipment cabinets or buildings at a tower site, the applicant shall provide written 
notice to the Zoning Administrator. The notice shall include a depiction of the location, size, and 
configuration of such antenna on the existing tower and equipment location within the existing tower facility 
in reference to an existing site plan and a certification from a licensed professional engineer verifying that the 
antenna will comply with wind load requirements and weight limits for the structure or tower as designed and 
installed. A Zoning Compliance Form shall be issued by the Zoning Administrator upon satisfaction of the 
above requirements, and any applicable building permits/inspections shall be required. 


 H. Site Application Timeframes.  The County shall act on applications for co-locations within 90 days, 
and all other applications within 150 days.  The Zoning Administrator has 30 days to determine if an 
application is complete.  If the Zoning Administrator requests additional information within the 30 day 
review period, the time it takes the applicant to respond will not count towards the 90 or 150 day time limits. 
Upon notice that an application is incomplete, the applicant has 30 days to submit all information necessary 
to complete the application.  Failure to complete the application in this timeframe shall result in an automatic 
withdrawal of the application and proposed tower will no longer be deemed a planned tower.    


 I. Tower Approval Expiration.  Approval of a site application by the applicable departments for a tower 
shall expire 12 months from the date of approval and will no longer be deemed a planned tower, unless a 
Certificate of Occupancy has been issued for the tower or the building permit remains active. 


 


Section III. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 
reference as if fully set out herein. 
 


Section IV.  a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that all Sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, believed by the 
Board of Commissioners to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 
 


b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed 
by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is severable from 
every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It is hereby further declared to be 
the intention of the Board of Commissioners that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no Section, 
paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually dependent upon any other Section, 
paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 
 


c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any reason 
whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree 
of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Board of Commissioners that such 
invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render 
invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 
paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, 
clauses, sentences, paragraphs and Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and 
of full force and effect. 
 


Section V.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 
hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 
 


Section VI.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise specified 
herein. 
 
 







 


 


10 


 
 So ordained this 26th day of May, 2011, by the  
 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


 


      _______________________________ 


      HERBERT FRADY, CHAIRMAN 


 


Attest: 
 
_________________________ 
Clerk/Deputy Clerk 
 
 
 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Zoning O...owers Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Zoning Ordinance- Towers Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Zoning Ordinance- Towers Backup.pdf

		Ordinance 2011-03 Telecommunications Towers








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Engineering / SPLOST Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Clearing and Grubbing Bid #789 to the low bidder, Rhino Services, LLC., in the amount of 


$87,891. 


Sufficient right-of-way and easements have been acquired along Veterans Parkway to allow field crews to begin shoulder and ditch work. 


To safely remove large trees and work around existing utilities, staff is recommending that clearing and grubbing activities be completed 


by a private contractor.  The scope of work includes clearing, grubbing, limbing of trees, and the removal and disposal of debris and other 


vegetation from station 0+00 to 93+00 (i.e., from end of Phase 1 to Eastin Road intersection).  The work will likely be completed in 


phases as outstanding right-of-way parcels and easements are acquired.   


 


Four companies submitted bids for this work and Rhino Services, L.L.C. is the low bid at $87,891. 


 


This work is for SPLOST Project R-5, the West Fayetteville Bypass, Phase 2.


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Clearing and Grubbing Bid # 789 to Rhino Services, LLC in the amount of $87,891.   


Funding for this work will be provided from the County's Transportation SPLOST, Account No.  321-40220-541210-R5


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, May 26, 2011











 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West                                              Main Phone:  770-305-5410                                               Web Site:  www.fayettecounty ga.gov 


 
 


To:  Ted Burgess 
  Interim Director of Purchasing 
 
From:  Carlos Christian 
  Transportation Engineer 
 
Date:  May 4, 2011 
 
Subject: Recommendation of Award 


Bid #789, Clearing & Grubbing 
 
 
We have completed our review of the four (4) bids received for the subject.   Based on the cost 
comparisons of each section of work from each respondent, it is our recommendation to award this 
contract to the apparent low bidder, Rhino Services, LLC in the amount of $87,891.    
 
Our plans are to have this proposal presented to the Board of Commissioner’s for award on May 26, 
2011.   


 
 
 









		Public Works- Bid #789 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Public Works- Bid #789 Backup

		Public Works- Bid #789 Backup-1.pdf

		Public Works- Bid #789 Backup-2

		#789 Clearing & Grubbing Cost Comparison

		Bid#789_Clearing  GrubbingRecommendationLetter_5-4-11














COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Engineering / SPLOST Phil Mallon


Consideration of staff's recommendation to award engineering and design services for the proposed Veteran's Parkway Bridge (WFB-2) 


over Whitewater Creek to Heath & Lineback Engineers, Inc., in an amount not to excced $133,238.


The West Fayetteville Bypass, Phase 2 (Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax project No. R-5) includes the design and construction 


of a bridge over Whitewater Creek, located approximately 1/4 mile north of existing Eastin Road. 


 


Two cost estimates were requested for this project, one from the Mallett Consulting Inc., the Project Engineer for the roadway design of 


WFB Phase 2, and one from Heath & Lineback Engineers (H&L), who is completing a bridge replacement design on Westbridge Road 


(SPLOST project No. B-2).  Although both companies are capable of performing the project, staff recommends award to H&L based on 


the quality of the work submitted for the Westbridge Road project, their demonstrated adherence to schedule and budget, the company's 


extensive experience with similar bridge projects, and their cost estimate which is nominally less than the other estimate. 


 


To minimize project cost, staff expects that the surveying and bridge foundation investigation work necessary to complete the design will 


be done using the subcontractors already working on the roadway alignment portion of the project.  The proposed cost estimates (see 


attached), however, are based on different companies performing this work.  This conservative approach is used in case any conflicts 


arise while coordinating the work between the roadway and bridge projects.  Identical costs for the surveying and foundation investigation 


were added to both estimates to ensure the numbers didn't bias the award recommendation.  


Approval of staff's recommendation to award engineering and design services for the proposed Veteran's Parkway Bridge (WFB-2) over 


Whitewater Creek to Heath & Lineback Engineers, Inc for a not-to-exceed amount of $133,238, and to authorize the Chairman to sign the 


contract contingent upon the County Attorney's review and approval.


Funding is available for this project from the Transportation SPLOST 321 fund, Project Number R-5.


No na


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 26, 2011







Fayette County Engineering Department  / Transportation SPLOST


WFB 2 (R‐5) Cost Estimates for Bridge Design over Whitewater Creek


H&L Mallett


1a. Bridge Hydraulic Analysis $20,328 $6,500


1b. Bridge Preliminary Layout $4,642 $7,500


2 .  Foundation Design (Intermediate Bents Substructure) $10,764 $11,500


3 .  Structural Bridge Design $11,124 $30,000


4 .  Approach Slab Design $360 $2,000


5 .  Abutment Wall Design $6,254 $5,000


6 .  Channel Armoring $0 $1,000


7 .  ESCP Design (Within Limits of Bridge) $1,230 $5,000


8 .  Utility Hanger Details $2,256 $500


9 .  Construction Plans and Technical specs $27,858 $10,000


10 . FEMA – CLOMR Preparation/Submittal $7,468 $4,500


11 . FEMA – LOMR Preparation/Submittal $3,734 $3,500


12 . Shop Drawings Review $2,412 $1,000


15.  Project Management $0 $16,000


13.  Bridge Foundation Investigation $28,808 $28,808


14.  Surveying $6,000 $6,000


Total $133,238 $138,808


NOTE:  Project management fee is 80% of the $20,000 shown on the quote.  It is 


discounted since the scoped excludes letting and management of construction activities.







From: Rudolph Frampton
To: Philip Mallon
Cc: Carlos Christian; William A. Krivsky
Subject: West Fayetteville Bypass Estimate
Date: Wednesday, April 20, 2011 4:08:16 PM


Dear Mr. Mallon,
 
As requested we have updated the cost proposal for the referenced project to include Hydraulic
Sections Survey.  Attached is our updated cost proposal for the referenced project. 
 
The updated tasks list and costs are as follows:
 
1a. Bridge Hydraulic Analysis - $20,328.00
1b. Bridge Preliminary Layout - $4,642.00
2 .  Foundation Design (Intermediate Bents Substructure) - $10,764.00
3 .  Structural Bridge Design - $11,124.00
4 .  Approach Slab Design - $360.00
5 .  Abutment Wall Design - $6,254.00
6 .  Channel Armoring - $0.00 since the channel will be protected under item 7 below.
7 .  ESPC Design (Within Limits of Bridge) - $1,230.00
8 .  Utility Hanger Details - $2,256.00
9 .  Construction Plans and Technical specs - $27,858.00
10 . FEMA – CLOMR Preparation/Submittal - $7,468.00
11 . FEMA – LOMR Preparation/Submittal - $3,734.00
12 . Shop Drawings Review - $2,412.00
13.  Bridge Foundation Investigation - $28,808.00
14. Hydraulic Sections Survey - $6,000.00
 
In summary, the total cost for tasks 1 through 9, 13 and 14 is $119,624.00.
 
If the additional services tasks 10 through 12 are required, the total cost is $133, 238.00.
 
Please let us know if you have any questions or comments.
 
Thank you.
 
Rudolph
________________________________________________
Rudolph Frampton, P.E., Heath & Lineback Engineers, Inc.
2390 Canton Road, Building 200                               
Marietta, GA 30066-5393                                                         
Direct Line: 678.569.2469
Voice: 770.424.1668    Fax: 770.424.2907
rframpton@heath-lineback.com
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: This email is for the sole use of the intended recipient. If you have received this email in error, please
notify the sender and delete/destroy the original email. Thanks.


 



mailto:rframpton@heath-lineback.com

mailto:pmallon@fayettecountyga.gov

mailto:cchristian@fayettecountyga.gov

mailto:akrivsky@heath-lineback.com

file:////c/pframpton@heath-lineback.com





Fa
ye


tte
 C


ou
nt


y 
D


ep
ar


tm
en


t o
f T


ra
ns


po
rt


at
io


n
$1


80
.0


0
$1


26
.0


0
$1


20
.0


0
$1


05
.0


0
$9


0.
00


$6
5.


00
$1


80
.0


0
$1


28
.0


0
$1


28
.0


0


C
O


ST
 P


R
O


PO
SA


L
60


.0
0


42
.0


0
40


.0
0


35
.0


0
30


.0
0


21
.6


7
60


.0
0


42
.6


7
42


.6
7


P
ro


j, 
N


o.
:


P
ro


je
ct


:
W


es
t F


ay
et


te
vi


lle
 B


yp
as


s 
ov


er
 W


hi
te


w
at


er
 C


re
ek


P
rim


e:
H


ea
th


 &
 L


in
eb


ac
k 


En
gi


ne
er


s
C


ou
nt


y:
Fa


ye
tte


D
at


e:
2-


M
ar


-1
1


Fe
e 


Ty
p e


Fe
e 


no
t t


o 
ex


ce
ed


Ph
as


e
D


es
cr


ip
tio


n


TO
TA


LS
 =


=>
87


0


1
C


on
ce


pt
 D


es
ig


n


2
D


at
ab


as
e 


Pr
ep


ar
at


io
n


3
Pr


el
im


in
ar


y 
Pl


an
s


20
4


4
Fi


na
l P


la
ns


55
2


5
A


dd
iti


on
al


 S
er


vi
ce


s
11


4


H
ea


th
 &


 L
in


eb
ac


k


To
ta


l 
H


ou
rs


P
rin


ci
pa


l-
in


-c
ha


rg
e


P
ro


je
ct


 
M


an
ag


er


 S
en


io
r 


R
oa


dw
ay


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


R
oa


dw
ay


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


R
oa


dw
ay


 
Te


ch
.


C
le


ric
al


 
P


ro
je


ct
 


M
an


ag
er


B
rid


ge
 


H
yd


ra
ul


ic
 


E
ng


in
ee


r


S
en


io
r 


B
rid


ge
 


E
ng


in
ee


r
B


rid
ge


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


B
rid


ge
 


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
C


A
D


D
 


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
C


le
ric


al
Ph


as
e


D
es


cr
ip


tio
n


$1
80


.0
0


$1
26


.0
0


$1
20


.0
0


$1
05


.0
0


$9
0.


00
$6


5.
00


$1
80


.0
0


$1
28


.0
0


$1
28


.0
0


$1
10


.0
0


$9
5.


00
$7


5.
00


$6
5.


00


TO
TA


LS
 =


=>
87


0
2


6
8


38
16


0
90


29
8


25
8


6
4


1
C


on
ce


pt
 D


es
ig


n


2
D


at
ab


as
e 


Pr
ep


ar
at


io
n


3
Pr


el
im


in
ar


y 
Pl


an
s


20
4


10
10


0
20


60
10


4


4
Fi


na
l P


la
ns


55
2


2
6


8
28


42
23


8
22


8


5
A


dd
iti


on
al


 S
er


vi
ce


s
11


4
60


28
20


6


St
af


f T
yp


e 
/ H


ou
rly


 R
at


es
 / 


H
ou


rs


13
3,


23
8.


00
$ 


   
   


  


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
  -


$ 
   


   
   


   
   


  
-


$ 
   


   
   


   
   


  


6,
00


0.
00


$ 
   


   
   


   


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


  
-


$ 
   


   
   


   
   


  
 


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


  


To
ta


l C
os


t
To


ta
l 


H
ou


rs
H


ea
th


 &
 L


in
eb


ac
k 


R
O


A
D


H
ea


th
 &


 L
in


eb
ac


k 
B


R
ID


G
E


U
ni


te
d 


C
on


su
lti


ng
 


- B
FI


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
  


1,
59


0.
00


$ 
   


   
   


   
   


96
,8


40
.0


0
$ 


   
   


   
   


28
,8


08
.0


0
$ 


   
   


   
 


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
  


 


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


  
13


,6
14


.0
0


$ 
   


   
  


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
  


1,
59


0.
00


$ 
   


   
   


  
58


,2
56


.0
0


$ 
   


   
  


$2
8,


80
8.


00


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


  
-


$ 
   


   
   


   
   


  


13
,6


14
.0


0
$ 


   
   


 24
,9


70
.0


0
$ 


   
   


 94
,6


54
.0


0
$ 


   
   


 
6,


00
0.


00
$ 


   
   


   


24
,9


70
.0


0
$ 


   
   


  


H
ea


th
 &


 L
in


eb
ac


k


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


  
 


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
  


To
ol


e 
Su


rv
ey


 In
c.


 -
H


yd
 S


ec
tio


ns


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
-


$ 
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


  
 -


$ 
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
  


 


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
  


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


  
 


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
  


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
  


-
$ 


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


  
 


4/
21


/2
01


1 
 8


:5
0 


A
M


C
os


t P
ro


po
sa


l W
hi


te
w


at
er


 C
r.x


ls
  B


rid
ge


P
ag


e 
 1


  o
f  


2







Fa
ye


tte
 C


ou
nt


y 
D


ep
ar


tm
en


t o
f T


ra
ns


po
rt


at
io


n
$1


80
.0


0
$1


26
.0


0
$1


20
.0


0
$1


05
.0


0
$9


0.
00


$6
5.


00
$1


80
.0


0
$1


28
.0


0
$1


28
.0


0


C
O


ST
 P


R
O


PO
SA


L
60


.0
0


42
.0


0
40


.0
0


35
.0


0
30


.0
0


21
.6


7
60


.0
0


42
.6


7
42


.6
7


P
ro


j, 
N


o.
:


P
ro


je
ct


:
W


es
t F


ay
et


te
vi


lle
 B


yp
as


s 
ov


er
 W


hi
te


w
at


er
 C


re
ek


P
rim


e:
H


ea
th


 &
 L


in
eb


ac
k 


En
gi


ne
er


s
C


ou
nt


y:
Fa


ye
tte


D
at


e:
2-


M
ar


-1
1


Fe
e 


Ty
p e


Fe
e 


no
t t


o 
ex


ce
ed


H
ea


th
 &


 L
in


eb
ac


k 


Ph
as


e
D


es
cr


ip
tio


n
To


ta
l 


H
ou


rs
P


rin
ci


pa
l-


in
-c


ha
rg


e
P


ro
je


ct
 


M
an


ag
er


 S
en


io
r 


R
oa


dw
ay


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


R
oa


dw
ay


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


R
oa


dw
ay


 
Te


ch
.


C
le


ric
al


 
P


ro
je


ct
 


M
an


ag
er


B
rid


ge
 


H
yd


ra
ul


ic
 


E
ng


in
ee


r


S
en


io
r 


B
rid


ge
 


E
ng


in
ee


r
B


rid
ge


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


B
rid


ge
 


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
C


A
D


D
 


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
C


le
ric


al
To


ta
l F


ee
 p


er
 


Ta
sk


1
Pr


el
im


in
ar


y 
Pl


an
s


20
4


10
10


0
20


60
10


4
$2


4,
97


0.
00


1.
a


B
rid


ge
 H


yd
ra


ul
ic


 A
na


ly
si


s
16


2
6


10
0


16
40


$2
0,


32
8.


00
1.


b
B


rid
ge


 P
re


lim
in


ar
y 


La
yo


ut
 (P


&
E


)
42


4
4


20
10


4
$4


,6
42


.0
0


Ph
as


e
D


es
cr


ip
tio


n
To


ta
l 


H
ou


rs
P


rin
ci


pa
l-


in
-c


ha
rg


e
P


ro
je


ct
 


M
an


ag
er


 S
en


io
r 


R
oa


dw
ay


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


R
oa


dw
ay


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


R
oa


dw
ay


 
Te


ch
.


C
le


ric
al


 
P


ro
je


ct
 


M
an


ag
er


B
rid


ge
 


H
yd


ra
ul


ic
 


E
ng


in
ee


r


S
en


io
r 


B
rid


ge
 


E
ng


in
ee


r
B


rid
ge


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


B
rid


ge
 


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
C


A
D


D
 


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
C


le
ric


al


2
Fi


na
l P


la
ns


55
2


2
6


8
28


42
23


8
22


8
$5


9,
84


6.
00


2
Fo


un
da


tio
n 


D
es


ig
n 


(In
te


rm
ed


ia
te


 B
en


ts
 S


ub
st


ru
ct


ur
e)


10
0


4
8


44
44


$1
0,


76
4.


00
3


S
tru


ct
ur


al
 B


rid
ge


 D
es


ig
n 


(S
up


er
st


ru
ct


ur
e)


10
2


6
8


44
44


$1
1,


12
4.


00
4


A
pp


ro
ac


h 
S


la
b 


D
es


ig
n 


(S
ta


nd
ar


ds
/D


et
ai


ls
)


4
4


$3
60


.0
0


5
A


bu
tm


en
t W


al
l D


es
ig


n
56


4
8


22
22


$6
,2


54
.0


0
6


C
ha


nn
el


 A
rm


or
in


g
7


E
S


P
C


 D
es


ig
n 


(w
ith


in
 li


m
its


 o
f b


rid
ge


)
12


2
6


4
$1


,2
30


.0
0


8
U


til
ity


 H
an


ge
r D


et
ai


ls
20


2
2


8
8


$2
,2


56
.0


0
9


C
on


st
ru


ct
io


n 
P


la
ns


 &
 T


ec
hn


ic
al


 S
pe


cs
 (B


rid
ge


)
25


8
12


16
12


0
11


0
$2


7,
85


8.
00


Ph
as


e
D


es
cr


ip
tio


n
To


ta
l 


H
ou


rs
P


rin
ci


pa
l-


in
-c


ha
rg


e
P


ro
je


ct
 


M
an


ag
er


 S
en


io
r 


R
oa


dw
ay


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


R
oa


dw
ay


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


R
oa


dw
ay


 
Te


ch
.


C
le


ric
al


 
P


ro
je


ct
 


M
an


ag
er


B
rid


ge
 


H
yd


ra
ul


ic
 


E
ng


in
ee


r


S
en


io
r 


B
rid


ge
 


E
ng


in
ee


r
B


rid
ge


 
E


ng
in


ee
r


B
rid


ge
 


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
C


A
D


D
 


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
C


le
ric


al


3
A


dd
iti


on
al


 S
er


vi
ce


s
11


4
60


28
20


6
$1


3,
61


4.
00


10
FE


M
A


 - 
C


LO
M


R
 P


re
pa


ra
tio


n/
S


ub
m


itt
al


 (i
f n


ee
de


d)
60


40
16


4
$7


,4
68


.0
0


11
FE


M
A


 - 
LO


M
R


 P
re


pa
ra


tio
n/


S
ub


m
itt


al
 (i


f n
ee


de
d)


30
20


8
2


$3
,7


34
.0


0
12


S
ho


p 
D


ra
w


in
g 


R
ev


ie
w


 (i
f d


es
ire


d)
24


4
20


$2
,4


12
.0


0


H
ea


th
 &


 L
in


eb
ac


k


4/
21


/2
01


1 
 8


:5
0 


A
M


C
os


t P
ro


po
sa


l W
hi


te
w


at
er


 C
r.x


ls
  B


rid
ge


P
ag


e 
 2


  o
f  


2











SPLOST - West Fayetteville Bypass - Phase II, Bridge at Whitewater Creek


Proposal for Design and Preparation of Construction Plans and Specs.


Description Total


1 Bridge Hydraulic Analysis $6,500.00


2 Bridge Preliminary Layout $7,500.00


3 Foundation Design $11,500.00


4 Structural Bridge Design $30,000.00


5 Approach Slab Design $2,000.00


6 Bridge Abutment Wall Design $5,000.00


7 Channel Armoring $1,000.00


8 ESPC Design $5,000.00


9 Utility Hanger Details $500.00


10 Construction Plans & Specs $10,000.00


11 Shop Drawing Review $1,000.00


Sub-Total: $80,000.00


12 FEMA - CLOMR (if needed) $4,500.00


13 FEMA - LOMR (if needed) $3,500.00


Total Design Fee: $88,000.00


Note: Individual fees are provided for breakdown of Total Fee only, 


and are not offered as 'stand alone' fees for a portion of the work.


14 Project Management $20,000.00


Note: Project Management fee is independent of Design Fee.





		Public Works- Heath and Lineback Agenda Request File.pdf

		Public Works- Heath and Lineback Backup

		Cost Estimate Summary for Bridge Design

		Sheet1



		H&L West Fayetteville Bypass Estimate.pdf

		H&L Cost Proposal Whitewater Cr

		Bridge



		Whitecreek Bridge0001

		Design Proposal








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Proposal #788 to Mike Wright & Co., d/b/a Wright's Hydroseeding, establishing an annual 


contract for the installation of soil erosion and sediment control measures on various Public Work projects, in an amount not to exceed 


$154,586.  


Local, State and Federal requirements mandate the use of Best Management Practices (BMPs) on all significant land-disturbing projects 


to help prevent soil erosion and subsequent downstream sedimentation.  Regulations require the BMPs to be installed per an approved 


plan and then modified, as needed, based on actual field conditions.  The erosion control program also requires substantial inspection, 


documentation and monitoring requirements.  Significant fines can be imposed for projects determined to be out of compliance.   


 


This annual contract for the installation soil erosion and sediment control BMPs is recommended so that County staff has the ability to 


have BMPs quickly installed on various projects per the plan or in response to extreme weather events or other circumstances.  Many of 


the BMPs require equipment, materials and/or expertise beyond the ability of in-house staff to install in a timely and cost-effective 


manner. 


 


Although this contract award is structured so that it can be used on any Public Works land-disturbing activity, the quantities and not-to-


exceed cost estimate are based on anticipated needs of the West Fayetteville Bypass, Phase 2.   


 


Three companies responded to the RFP and Wright's Hydroseeding is the low bid and sufficiently meets all RFP criteria.  


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Proposal #788 to Mike Wright & Co., Inc. d/b/a Wright's Hydroseeding based on the unit 


costs provided in their proposal in an amount not to exceed $154,586. 


This is a unit price proposal and would require funding as erosion control items are ordered on a project-by-project basis.  Funding will be 


provided from each project's budget. 


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, May 26, 2011







 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov


 
 
 
To:  Jack Krakeel 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  May 14, 2011 
 
Subject: RFP #P788 – Erosion Control Installation & Maintenance 
 
The county issued Request for Proposals #P788 to solicit proposals for a 12-month 
erosion control contract.  Products and services to be provided included installation of 
sediment barriers, sediment traps disturbed area stabilization storm drain outlet 
protection, erosion control matting, and other items.  Responses were to include unit 
prices for each item, including new installation and subsequent maintenance or 
replacement. 
 
Three responses were received.  The responders were GCS & Associates, Matriarch 
Construction Company, and Wright’s Hydroseeding.  Proposals were evaluated based on 
unit prices proposed for each item.  Using a calculation based on unit prices offered 
times the estimated number of units needed, the total amount for GCS & Associates 
appeared lowest.  However GCS only bid on 61% of the new-installation items, and 30% 
of the maintenance items.  In a comparison of all three proposals based on the items bid 
by all three, Wright’s Hydroseeding was the apparent low-bidder. 
 
It is proposed that Wright’s Hydroseeding be awarded the 12-month contract for erosion 
control installation and maintenance. 







PR
O


PO
SA


L 
#P


78
8 


 A
N


N
U


A
L 


C
O


N
TR


A
C


T 
ER


O
SI


O
N


 C
O


N
TR


O
L 


IN
ST


A
LL


A
TI


O
N


G
C


S 
&


 A
ss


oc
., 


In
c.


M
at


ria
rc


h 
C


on
st


ru
ct


io
n


W
rig


ht
's


 H
yd


ro
se


ed
in


g
Es


t Q
ty


N
ew


 In
st


al
la


tio
n


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


N
ew


 In
st


al
la


tio
n


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


N
ew


 In
st


al
la


tio
n


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


Ite
m


Ite
m


 D
es


cr
ip


tio
n


N
ew


M
ai


nt
U


ni
t C


os
t


To
ta


l C
os


t
U


ni
t C


os
t


To
ta


l C
os


t
U


ni
t C


os
t


To
ta


l C
os


t
U


ni
t C


os
t


To
ta


l C
os


t
U


ni
t C


os
t


To
ta


l C
os


t
U


ni
t C


os
t


To
ta


l C
os


t


1
Sd


1-
A


 - 
S


ed
im


en
t B


ar
rie


r  
-T


yp
e 


A
 S


ilt
 F


en
ce


3,
20


0
32


0
$0


.8
8


$2
,8


16
.0


0
$0


.4
9


$1
56


.8
0


$2
.5


0
$8


,0
00


.0
0


$2
.5


0
$8


00
.0


0
$0


.9
0


$2
,8


80
.0


0
$0


.5
0


$1
60


.0
0


2
Sd


1-
 C


 - 
S


ed
im


en
t B


ar
rie


r -
 T


yp
e 


C
 S


ilt
 


Fe
nc


e
2,


23
0


22
3


$1
.5


9
$3


,5
45


.7
0


$0
.6


9
$1


53
.8


7
$4


.5
0


$1
0,


03
5.


00
$4


.5
0


$1
,0


03
.5


0
$1


.8
5


$4
,1


25
.5


0
$1


.0
0


$2
23


.0
0


3
Sd


1–
H


b 
– 


H
ay


 o
r S


tra
w


 B
al


es
30


0
30


$2
.4


9
$7


47
.0


0
$0


.6
9


$2
0.


70
$4


.5
0


$1
,3


50
.0


0
$4


.5
0


$1
35


.0
0


$2
.5


0
$7


50
.0


0
$2


.2
0


$6
6.


00
4a


Sd
2 


– 
S


ed
im


en
t T


ra
p,


 T
em


po
ra


ry
 (S


ilt
 


S
av


er
s 


w
/#


57
 S


to
ne


 S
ur


ro
un


d)
7


1
$3


98
.0


0
$2


,7
86


.0
0


$2
4.


00
$2


4.
00


$1
60


.0
0


$1
,1


20
.0


0
$1


60
.0


0
$1


60
.0


0
$4


00
.0


0
$2


,8
00


.0
0


$2
50


.0
0


$2
50


.0
0


4b
Sd


2 
– 


S
ed


im
en


t T
ra


p,
 T


em
po


ra
ry


 (T
yp


e 
C


 
S


ilt
 F


en
ce


 w
/ u


nd
er


cu
t a


ro
un


d 
en


tir
e 


st
ru


ct
ur


e)
7


1
$6


9.
00


$4
83


.0
0


$2
4.


00
$2


4.
00


$3
00


.0
0


$2
,1


00
.0


0
$3


00
.0


0
$3


00
.0


0
$8


5.
00


$5
95


.0
0


$6
5.


00
$6


5.
00


5
Sd


2–
P 


– 
S


ed
im


en
t T


ra
p,


 T
em


po
ra


ry
 (C


ur
b 


In
le


t F
ilt


er
)


7
1


$8
9.


00
$6


23
.0


0
$2


4.
00


$2
4.


00
$9


5.
00


$6
65


.0
0


$9
5.


00
$9


5.
00


$8
5.


00
$5


95
.0


0
$6


5.
00


$6
5.


00


6
C


o 
– 


C
on


st
ru


ct
io


n 
E


xi
t


10
1


$1
,1


98
.0


0
$1


1,
98


0.
00


$7
98


.0
0


$7
98


.0
0


$5
60


.0
0


$5
,6


00
.0


0
$5


60
.0


0
$5


60
.0


0
$1


,2
00


.0
0


$1
2,


00
0.


00
$7


00
.0


0
$7


00
.0


0
7


C
d 


– 
C


he
ck


 D
am


90
9


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


$1
80


.0
0


$1
6,


20
0.


00
$1


80
.0


0
$1


,6
20


.0
0


$1
25


.0
0


$1
1,


25
0.


00
$9


5.
00


$8
55


.0
0


8
D


s1
 - 


D
is


tu
rb


ed
 A


re
a 


S
ta


bi
liz


at
io


n 
(w


/M
ul


ch
in


g)
27


0,
00


0
27


,0
00


$0
.1


2
$3


2,
40


0.
00


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


$0
.2


5
$6


7,
50


0.
00


$0
.2


5
$6


,7
50


.0
0


$0
.1


0
$2


7,
00


0.
00


$0
.0


8
$2


,1
60


.0
0


9
D


s2
 –


 D
is


tu
rb


ed
 A


re
a 


S
ta


bi
liz


at
io


n 
(w


/T
em


po
ra


ry
 S


ee
di


ng
)


14
7,


30
0


14
,7


30
$0


.1
4


$2
0,


62
2.


00
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
$0


.2
5


$3
6,


82
5.


00
$0


.2
5


$3
,6


82
.5


0
$0


.1
6


$2
3,


56
8.


00
$0


.1
4


$2
,0


62
.2


0


10
D


s3
 –


 D
is


tu
rb


ed
 A


re
a 


S
ta


bi
liz


at
io


n 
(w


/P
er


m
an


en
t S


ee
di


ng
)


12
2,


90
0


12
,2


90
$0


.2
4


$2
9,


49
6.


00
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
$0


.3
0


$3
6,


87
0.


00
$0


.3
0


$3
,6


87
.0


0
$0


.2
0


$2
4,


58
0.


00
$0


.1
8


$2
,2


12
.2


0


11
R


d 
– 


R
oc


k 
fil


te
r D


am
 (m


ax
 1


0’
 w


id
e 


or
 le


ss
 a


t 
bo


tto
m


 o
f c


ha
nn


el
)


7
1


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


$2
80


.0
0


$1
,9


60
.0


0
$2


80
.0


0
$2


80
.0


0
$1


75
.0


0
$1


,2
25


.0
0


$1
35


.0
0


$1
35


.0
0


12
a


St
 –


 S
to


rm
 D


ra
in


 o
ut


le
t P


ro
te


ct
io


n 
- 1


8”
  P


ip
e


26
3


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


$4
25


.0
0


$1
1,


05
0.


00
$4


25
.0


0
$1


,2
75


.0
0


$2
75


.0
0


$7
,1


50
.0


0
$2


50
.0


0
$7


50
.0


0
12


b
St


 –
 S


to
rm


 D
ra


in
 o


ut
le


t P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


- 2
4”


 P
ip


e
5


1
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
$4


35
.0


0
$2


,1
75


.0
0


$4
35


.0
0


$4
35


.0
0


$3
00


.0
0


$1
,5


00
.0


0
$2


75
.0


0
$2


75
.0


0
12


c
St


 –
 S


to
rm


 D
ra


in
 o


ut
le


t P
ro


te
ct


io
n 


- 3
0”


 P
ip


e
4


1
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
$1


,0
50


.0
0


$4
,2


00
.0


0
$1


,0
50


.0
0


$1
,0


50
.0


0
$3


15
.0


0
$1


,2
60


.0
0


$2
90


.0
0


$2
90


.0
0


12
d


St
 –


 S
to


rm
 D


ra
in


 o
ut


le
t P


ro
te


ct
io


n 
  F


or
 a


 3
6”


 d
ia


. 
P


ip
e


4
1


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


$1
,0


50
.0


0
$4


,2
00


.0
0


$1
,0


50
.0


0
$1


,0
50


.0
0


$4
30


.0
0


$1
,7


20
.0


0
$4


05
.0


0
$4


05
.0


0


12
e


St
 –


 S
to


rm
 D


ra
in


 o
ut


le
t P


ro
te


ct
io


n 
Fo


r a
 4


8”
 d


ia
. 


P
ip


e
6


1
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
$1


,4
75


.0
0


$8
,8


50
.0


0
$1


,4
75


.0
0


$1
,4


75
.0


0
$6


00
.0


0
$3


,6
00


.0
0


$5
75


.0
0


$5
75


.0
0


13
M


b 
– 


E
ro


si
on


 C
on


tro
l M


at
tin


g 
(S


te
ep


 B
an


ks
)


11
,4


00
1,


14
0


$0
.7


9
$9


,0
06


.0
0


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


$8
.0


0
$9


1,
20


0.
00


$8
.0


0
$9


,1
20


.0
0


$1
.0


0
$1


1,
40


0.
00


$1
.0


0
$1


,1
40


.0
0


14
M


b 
– 


E
ro


si
on


 C
on


tro
l M


at
tin


g 
(fo


r 
co


nc
en


tra
te


d 
flo


w
 a


re
as


)
60


0
60


$1
.2


9
$7


74
.0


0
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
$1


1.
00


$6
,6


00
.0


0
$1


1.
00


$6
60


.0
0


$1
.1


5
$6


90
.0


0
$1


.1
5


$6
9.


00


15
Pm


 –
 P


ol
ya


cr
yl


am
id


e 
(P


A
M


)(
D


ry
 p


ro
du


ct
 @


 
50


lb
s/


ac
re


)
2


1
$5


98
.0


0
$1


,1
96


.0
0


N
o 


B
id


N
o 


B
id


$7
50


.0
0


$1
,5


00
.0


0
$7


50
.0


0
$7


50
.0


0
$3


25
.0


0
$6


50
.0


0
$3


25
.0


0
$3


25
.0


0


16
Pm


 –
 P


ol
ya


cr
yl


am
id


e 
(P


A
M


) (
em


ul
si


on
-li


qu
id


 
pr


od
uc


ts
 @


 2
 ½


 G
al


/a
c)


2
1


$6
98


.0
0


$1
,3


96
.0


0
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
$4


50
.0


0
$9


00
.0


0
$4


50
.0


0
$4


50
.0


0
$3


25
.0


0
$6


50
.0


0
$3


25
.0


0
$3


25
.0


0


17
Fr


 –
 F


ilt
er


 R
in


g
10


1
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
$8


95
.0


0
$8


,9
50


.0
0


$8
95


.0
0


$8
95


.0
0


$8
5.


00
$8


50
.0


0
$6


5.
00


$6
5.


00
18


R
t –


 R
et


ro
fit


tin
g 


(in
cl


ud
in


g 
st


on
e 


fil
te


r)
3


1
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
N


o 
B


id
$1


,9
62


.0
0


$5
,8


86
.0


0
$1


,9
62


.0
0


$1
,9


62
.0


0
$1


50
.0


0
$4


50
.0


0
$1


25
.0


0
$1


25
.0


0


TO
TA


L 
B


ID
 C


O
S


T 
=


$1
17


,8
70


.7
0


$1
,2


01
.3


7
$3


33
,7


36
.0


0
$3


8,
19


5.
00


$1
41


,2
88


.5
0


$1
3,


29
7.


40
N


ot
es


: M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


 c
os


ts
 c


an
 b


e 
es


tim
at


ed
 to


 b
e 


10
%


 o
f t


ot
al


 n
ew


 in
st


al
la


tio
n 


co
st


s.
A


fte
r c


on
si


de
rin


g 
ite


m
s 


no
t b


id
 b


y 
G


C
S


 &
 A


ss
oc


ia
te


s,
 W


rig
ht


's
 H


yd
ro


se
ed


in
g 


is
 s


ho
w


n 
to


 b
e 


th
e 


ap
pa


re
nt


 lo
w


 b
id


de
r.


Th
e 


co
nt


ra
ct


 w
ill


 b
e 


aw
ar


de
d 


fo
r 1


2 
m


on
th


s.





		Public Works- Proposal #P788 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Public Works- Proposal #P788 Backup

		Purchasing - P788 Erosion Control Backup 1.pdf

		Purchasing - P788 Erosion Control Backup 2

		Sheet1










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Engineering / SPLOST Phil Mallon & Carlos Christian


Engineering staff will provide an update on proposed design for SPLOST Project FC-15, intersection improvements at Goza Road, Inman 


Road and State Route 92.


Fayette County hired Wolverton & Associates to provide Engineering & Design Services for SPLOST Project FC-15 in November 2010.   


To-date, their work involved performing a traffic study of the intersection and developing several concept designs.  The results of the 


traffic study indicated that a traffic signal is not warranted at this time.   This intersection was then analyzed for a round-a-bout, which was 


favorable to the Georgia Department of Transportation, but would 1) require additional road re-alignments to State & County roads; 2) 


have greater impact on surrounding properties; and 3) significantly increase project cost.  A two-way stop option was then prepared and 


discussed with Georgia DOT and found to meet the immediate improvement objectives of this intersection by aligning Inman and Goza 


Roads and providing appropriate turn lanes.    


 


Final design for a two-way stop intersection will start in June 2011, following this presentation/update to the BOC.


No action is required; the presentation is for informational purposes only.


Funding for design work was authorized by the BOC on October 28, 2010 and is budgeted through the SPLOST 320 fund (Project 


FC-15).  


Yes 10/28/2010


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessMay 26, 2011











COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Public Works / SPLOST Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid No. 765 Engineering and Design Services for SPLOST Project No. FC-15, intersection 


improvements at Goza Road, Inman Road and S.R. 92, to Wolverton & Associates, in accordance with the terms and fees provided in the 


company's bid dated October 12, 2010.


The engineering and design services for Project FC-15 consists of two Phases.  Phase 1 includes a traffic study and development of a 


concept design and cost estimate for the intersection.  Improvements to be considered include a traffic signal, roundabout and two-way 


stop control.  Phase 2 includes preparation of construction plans, right-of-way plans, final cost estimates.   


 


Three companies provided bids for this work.  Wolverton & Associates is the low bid, per the formula specified in the ITB, and meets the 


requirements for references, insurance and schedule.  The Not-To-Exceed Design Fees are as follows: 


 


Phase 1 Concept Design Fee:  $5,700 


Phase 2 Traffic Signal Option:  $50,100 


Phase 2  Roundabout Option:  $44,100 


Phase 2  Two-Way Stop Option:  $44,100 


 


The total cost for engineering and design services will be the Concept Design Fee plus one of the Phase 2 options.  The work should be 


completed within ten months of the Notice to Proceed.  


Approval of staff's recommendation to award engineering and design services for intersection improvements at Goza Road, Inman Road 


and State Route 92 (SPLOST Project No. FC-15) to Wolverton & Associates, in accordance with the terms and fees provided in the 


company's bid dated October 12, 2010 (Bid No. 765).  Once a contract is prepared, the County Attorney will present it to the Board for 


execution.


This project will be funded with the Transportation SPLOST, 320 Fund, Project FC-15.


Yes Thursday, September 23, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, October 28, 2010























COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Public Works / SPLOST Phil Mallon


Discussion of staff's request for authorization to solicit bids for professional services associated with SPLOST Project No. FC-15 


Intersection Improvements at SR 92, Inman Road, and Goza Road.


The Fayette County Purchasing and Public Works Departments are seeking authorization from the Board of Commissioners to use the 


short-list of Consultants developed for RFP No. P733 to seek competitive bids for professional services associated with Special Purpose 


Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) Project No. FC-15.  Project FC-15 is very similar, in every way, to the intersection projects included in 


RFP P733 and using the same short list will ensure the County receives multiple bids from qualified and experienced Consultants in a 


timely manner.   


 


Award of the contract to the low bid will still be brought before the Board of Commissioners for consideration and approval when the 


selection process is complete. 


 


Additional information supporting this request is provided in the attached memorandum.  


Authorization for County staff to solicit bids for professional services associated with SPLOST Project No. FC-15 (Intersection 


Improvements at SR 92, Inman Road and Goza Road) using the short-list of Consultants identified under RFP No. P733 for intersection 


improvement work.  


Approval to solicit bids using the existing short-list does not require funding.  The engineering and design work, if ultimately approved by 


the Board, would be funded with SPLOST 320 funds.  


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, September 23, 2010







 


_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West                                              Main Phone:  770-460-5730                                               Web Site:  www.fayettecounty ga.gov 


 


To:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator, 
Tim Jones, Purchasing Department 


From:  Phil Mallon, Public Works 


Date:  September 13, 2010 


Subject: Recommendation of Short-List for Engineering Services 
Intersection Improvements at SR 92, Inman Road and Goza Road 
SPLOST Project No. FC-15 


 


Fayette County Public Works is in need of engineering services to assist with the evaluation and 
design of intersection improvements at the intersection of State Route 92 with Inman and Goza 
Roads.  To ensure competitive bids from experienced and qualified firms, Public Works is 
recommending that bids for this project (FC-15) be solicited exclusively from Consultants that 
were previous shorted-listed by Fayette County for intersection improvement work as part of 
Request for Proposal Number P733.  This RFP was issued by the Fayette County Purchasing 
Department on January 25, 2010 and awarded by the Board of Commissioners on March 25, 
2010.   


RFP P733 included two intersection projects (FC-8 and FC-14) very similar to FC-15 and it is 
expected that if a new RFP were issued for FC-15, the same short-list of consultants would be 
identified.  Listed below is additional information that illustrates the similarities among the three 
projects:   


 The scope of work for project FC-15 is similar in scope and magnitude to the two 
intersection projects (FC-8 and FC-14) in RFP No. P733; 


 The three projects are locally funded with transportation SPLOST dollars;   


 The three intersections involve the intersection of a local road with a State Route; 


 The three intersections require a Traffic Engineering study to evaluate stop sign, roundabout 
and traffic signal control; 


 The three projects will be designed in a two-phase process: 1) concept design and cost 
estimate, and 2) final design and cost estimate; 


 The three projects require the Consultant to be pre-qualified by the Georgia Department of 
Transportation (GDOT); 







   Pg. 2 
 


 The compensation for services and the plan submittal and deliverable requirements are the 
same for the three projects; 


 The same evaluation and selection criteria is appropriate for all three projects (i.e., 
qualifications and experience, schedule, project understanding, references and quality 
assurance/quality control); and 


 The time frame for project advertisements and awards are within a relatively short period of 
one another.   


Following this approach ensures Fayette County receives competitive bids from experienced and 
qualified Consultants in a timely manner.  As it is expected the bids for these professional 
services will exceed $20,000, award of a contract to the low bid will be brought before the Board 
of Commissioners for review and approval.   





		Public Works- SPLOST FC-15 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Public Works- SPLOST FC-15 Backup

		FC-15 ConceptLayout2-wayStop_4-15-11

		FC15 Back-up 1

		FC15 Back-up 2








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Engineering / SPLOST Phil Mallon, Carlos Christian


Consideration of staff's request to allocate $250,000 of Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) 321 funds for the employment 


of temporary staff to assist with construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass, Phase II (R-5) and other SPLOST projects.  


The West Fayetteville Bypass, Phase II Project is 4.6 miles long and extends from the northern terminus of Phase I on Veterans Parkway 


to Westbridge Road at SR92.  Staff recommends using County resources for the earthwork associated with the 1.8-mile section of the 


project from the northern terminus of Phase 1 to Eastin Road.  Performing the work in-house allows us to begin work sooner, utilize 


existing County staff and equipment, and ultimately construct the project cheaper than if it was awarded to a contractor.  Furthermore, the 


grading work required along this section of the project is within the County's experience level.  


 


Acquisition of right-of-way along the project is underway. To date, all the right-of-way and easements needed to begin shoulder & ditch 


line improvements has been acquired.   All necessary permits and mitigations credits have been obtained and staff has procured the 


needed material and equipment to start construction.  Only additional labor is needed to move the project forward in an efficient manner.   


  


The temporary, i.e. seasonal, labor needs are estimated to be 6 people over a 12-month period.  The staff would be used for general 


labor, heavy equipment operation, and traffic control.  The estimate of $250,000 is based on 6 people, 40 hours per week (average), 52 


weeks of work (over a 15-18 month period) at an average rate of $20 per hour.  No benefits would be provided to the temporary help.


Authorization of $250,000 Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (SPLOST) 321 funds for the employment of temporary staff to assist 


with construction of the West Fayetteville Bypass, Phase II (R-5) and other SPLOST projects.  


Funding for this request is to come entirely from SPLOST 321 funds, with majority of work charged to Phase II of the West Fayetteville 


Bypass Project No. R-5


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessMay 28, 2011







WEST FAYETTEVILLE BYPASS – PHASE II 
Project Plan for Construction – Sandy Creek Rd @ WFB Phase I to Eastin Road 


  
1. Contract - Clear & Grub along Tillman Road (large trees in close proximity to overhead 


utilities) & through field off Tillman Road to Eastin Road. 
2. Contract - Erosion Control contract (expect to have ready to go out NLT Monday, March 28, 


2011). 
3. E&SC Plans from Sandy Creek to Eastin Road in review by stormwater.    Expect to submit 


to EPA next week to begin 10-day countdown for NOI. 
4. Contract - complete culvert crossing @ end of Tillman (STA 69+00) and other culvert 


crossing @ STA 79+50 & STA 84+00.   Primarily for pipe sizes larger than 48” dia. – need 
expertise equipment & certified chains for that size pipe.)  


5. Contract – Concrete work (medians, driveways, etc.) 
6. Contract – Paving Work (depending on the availability of FC crews to provide paving 


support) 
7. Requisitions - Personnel/Equipment Needs (rent crew cab for temporary workers): 


A. Sandy Creek Road to Tillman Road (Shoulders) 
Equipment Needs: 
   1.  PC 220 Excavator 
   2.  D-4 LGP Dozer (open cab) 
   3.  3-Dump trucks (rental) 
   4.   Street Sweeper 
   5.   Motor Grader 
   6.   2-way Radios 
Personnel Needs: 


1.  3-Equipment Operators 
2.  2-laborers  


 
B. Sandy Creek Road @ Tillman Rd. to Curve in Tillman Rd. 


Equipment Needs: 
1. PC 220 Excavator  (w/wide bucket - 36±) 
2. Pad Foot Vibratory Compactor 
3. Smooth Drum vibratory Roller 
4. Water truck 
5. 5-Dump trucks(rental) 
6. Motor Grader  
7. Cat 963 Loader 
8. 815 Compactor 


Personnel Needs: 
   1.  4-Equipment Operators 
   2. 2-laborers – Needed when connecting Sandy Creek at Bypass locations 


 
C. Tillman Road to Eastin Road 


Equipment Needs: 
1. PC 400 Excavator (or CAT 345) 
2. D-4 Dozer (ditches & slopes)  
3. D-6 Dozer (fill areas) 
4. CAT 815 Compactor 
5. Smooth Drum vibratory Roller 


Date: 2-25-11 







Date: 2-25-11 


6. Water truck 
7. Offroad Dump trucks (30-35-ton) 
8. Motor Grader  
9. Cat 963 Loader 


 
 


Personnel Needs: 
1. 4-Equipment Operators 
2. 2-laborers – Only needed at Eastin Road tie-in. 





		Public Works- Temporary Help Agenda Request File.pdf

		Public Works- Temporary Help Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Purchasing Ted Burgess


Consideration of a request from staff to approve Ordinance 2011-04, authorizing the Purchasing Department to purchase fuel, based on 


the lowest bid available, at a total cost not to exceed $30,000 per bid in order to minimize the impact of price volatility, and for the 


Purchasing Director to provide a quarterly report to the Board concerning fuel purchases.


In the last 12 months, the county has processed 51 purchase orders for 293,500 gallons of gasoline and 113,271 gallons of diesel fuel.  


Of the 51 purchase orders, 23 were for payments over $20,000. 


 


County Code Section 2-119 says that, if the price of a purchase exceeds $20,000 "the purchase may be made by the director of 


purchasing only after the prospective purchase has been approved by the board of commissioners on a competitive sealed bid basis."  


Historically, county staff have followed this procedure.  The price of fuel has become increasing volatile, creating a need to consider 


raising the purchase authority for fuel to $30,000.  


 


Ordinance 2011-04 will amend County Code Section 2-119 by authorizing the director of purchasing to make purchases of fuel on the 


open market where the purchase price does not exceed thirty thousand dollars ($30,000); and where the purchase price exceeds thirty 


thousand dollars, the purchase may be made by the director of purchasing only after the Board's approval. 


 


The Purchasing Director will also provide a quarterly report to the board concerning fuel purchases. 


Approval of staff's request to amend County Code 2-119, authorizing the Purchasing Department to purchase fuel, based on the lowest 


bid available, at a total cost not to exceed $30,000 per bid in order to minimize the impact of price volatility, and for the Purchasing 


Director to provide a quarterly report to the Board concerning fuel purchases.


Funds are budgeted for fuel purchases.  This request will not require additional funds.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 26, 2011

















		Purchasing- Fuel Blanket Authority Agenda Request File.pdf

		Purchasing- Fuel Blanket Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #787 for dust control on gravel roads to South Eastern Road Treatment for the 


application of calcium chloride at the rate of $0.24 per square yard, in an amount not to exceed $47,648.00.


Bid #787 for dust control on gravel roads  were solicited for this work to nine companies thought to be capable of performing the scope of 


the work. Only two companies bid. Of the two bids received, staff is recommending the acceptance of  the low bid as submitted by South 


Eastern Road Treatment.  


 


The work will be performed on 18 different gravel roads totaling 18.8 miles in length.  The specific roads were chosen based on several 


factors including: traffic volume, maintenance requirements and citizen requests. 


 


The price of $47,648.00 equates to a price of $0.24 per square yard which is less than the $0.26 per square yard paid last year. 


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #787 for dust control on gravel roads to South Eastern Road Treatment for the 


application of calcium chloride at the rate of $0.24 per square yard for a total amount not to exceed $47,648.00, and to authorize the 


Chairman to sign the contract contingent upon the County Attorney's review and approval.


This work is funded in the Road Department's Technical Services Account.


Yes Thursday, June 10, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, May 26, 2011

















		Road- Dust Control Agenda Request File.pdf

		Road- Dust Control Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Road Department Phil Mallon


Consideration of the City of Fayetteville's request for the Fayette County Road Department to resurface and stripe two segments of 


Redwine Road within Fayetteville's city limits.


This summer the Road Department plans to complete resurfacing work on Redwine Road, specifically from Harris Road north to Ramah 


Road.  Near the Ramah Road intersection there are two sections of road totaling approximately 0.8 miles that are entirely within the 


Fayetteville City limits.  The material cost for asphalt, tack and striping to complete work within these sections is approximately $70,000.   


In order to provide a continuous pad of new asphalt along this stretch of road, the City is requesting the County include this work as part 


of the Redwine resurfacing project.   


 


Attached as back-up to this agenda request is a May 12, 2011 letter from Mayor Steele to Chairman Frady regarding this issue.  Also 


provided is a map showing the segments of road requested for paving.   


Approval of the City of Fayetteville's request for the Fayette County Road Department to resurface and stripe two segments of Redwine 


Road within Fayetteville's city limits.  


If approved, the requested paving would be funded from the Road Department's Asphalt & Tack Account and Technical Services 


Account.  SEE STAFF NOTE BELOW 


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


FINANCE: Adequate funding is not available in the Road Dept's 2011 budget. Approval of this request will require use of contingency 


funds. 


New BusinessMay 28, 2011











    Ro
ad


 se
gm


en
ts
 re


qu
es
te
d 
by


 
th
e 
Ci
ty
 o
f F
ay
et
te
vi
lle
 fo


r 
pa
vi
ng


 a
re
 sh


ow
n 
in
 y
el
lo
w
.  


  Se
gm


en
t 1


   
   
   
2,
29
0’
  


Se
gm


en
t 2


   
   
   
2,
13
0’
 


To
ta
l (
fe
et
)  


  4
,4
20
’ 


To
ta
l (
m
ile
s)
   
   
   
 0
.8
  


 
   


   
   


 
      





		Road - Redwine Resurfacing Agenda Request File.pdf

		Road - Redwine Resurfacing Backup

		Road - Redwine Resurfacing in City Limits Back-Up

		Redwine Rd Paving Map








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's Office request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations 
Division by $8,861.41 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 
Investigations Division by $8,861.41 which has been received from various federal programs for the 2010-2011 Fiscal Year.  This would 
revise the Overtime Regular Budget Account to $177,740.21.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, May 26, 2011








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Street Lights Tony Parrott


Approval of staff's request to amend the Lakeridge III Street Light District to include one additional street light.


The Board of Commissioners approved a request from Lakeridge III to become a street light district on April 25, 1991.   
 
Recently, the homeowners in the Lakeridge III Street Light District presented county staff with a petition containing 31 signatures, 
representing 91% of the residents, requesting an additional street light.  Fayette County requires 66.66% of all affected residents to agree 
to becoming a Street Light District or to add additional lights to the district; therefore, the residents have met this requirement. 
 
The remaining homeowners, representing 9% of affected residents, have been notified of this petition by certified mail.   
 
The proposed additional street light will be a 250-watt HPS on an existing overhead pole.  This additional light will cost $10.50 per month 
per Coweta-Fayette EMC.  Assessments for street lights are levied on the tax bills for participants in the street light program.  The 
residents agree to pay the additional assessments required to add this light 
 
THE FULL PETITION CONTAINING SIGNATURES OF HOMEOWNERS IS AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC REVIEW UPON REQUEST.


Approval of staff's request to amend the Lakeridge III Street Light District to include one additional street light.


No funding required.  Residents who participate will be billed annually on their tax bills for incurred electric expenses associated with their 
street light district.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, May 26, 2011








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Tax Assessors Joel T. Benton


Approval of recommendations from the Tax Assessor's Office regarding requests for tax refunds.


When a taxpayer feels that an error has occurred with respect to taxes paid to Fayette County on Real Estate and Personal Property tax 


bills, they have the right to request a Refund under O.C.G.A. 48-5-380. This request is given to the Tax Assessors' Office in order to be 


reviewed in detail and the appropriate recommendation(s) are then forwarded to the Board of Commissioner's for their final approval of 


said requests.


Approval of recommendations from the Tax Assessor's Office regarding requests for tax refunds.


The funding required will be for those refund requests where the overpayment of taxes (voluntarily or involuntarily) was a direct result of 


property that had previously been erroneously assessed and taxes have already been collected from the taxpayer(s).


Yes Periodically through the year(s)


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, May 26, 2011







R
e


fu
n


d
 R


e
q


u
e


s
ts


B
O


C
P


e
n


d
in


g
T


a
x


p
a


y
e


r
Y


e
a


r(
s


)
P


ro
p


e
rt


y
 


B
a


s
is


 f
o


r 
R


e
q


u
e


s
t


R
e


c
o


m
m


e
n


d
R


e
a


s
o


n
A


m
o


u
n


t


R
O


C
L
A


D
 E


n
te


rp
ri
s
e
s


(0
7
-0


4
-0


1
4
)


2
0
0
9


2
0
1
0


R
e
s
id


e
n
ti
a
l


T
a
x
p
a
ye


r 
re


q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 r


e
fu


n
d
 f
o
r 


la
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
w


a
s
 c


o
n
d
e
m


n
e
d
 b


y 
th


e
 


C
o
u
n
ty


2
0
0
9
 -


 D
e
n
y


2
0
1
0
 -


 A
p
p
ro


v
e
  


O
n
 F


e
b
u
ra


ry
 1


8
, 
2
0
0
9
 t
h
e
 C


o
u
n
ty


 


c
o
n
d
e
m


n
e
d
 a


p
p
ro


v
im


a
te


ly
 5


.4
 a


c
re


s
 o


f 


P
a
rc


e
l 
0
7
-0


4
-0


1
4
 f
o
r 


p
u
b
lic


 u
s
e
.


2
0
0
9
 -


 $
6
1
9
.7


8


2
0
1
0
 -


 $
5
8
5
.0


7


A
th


e
n
a
 S


c
h
w


a
n
te


s


(0
5
-1


9
1
0
-0


2
3
)


2
0
0
7


2
0
0
8


2
0
0
9


2
0
1
0


R
e
s
id


e
n
ti
a
l


In
 2


0
0
6
, 
M


rs
. 
S


c
h
w


a
n
te


s
' 


h
u
s
b
a
n
d
, 
a
 f
ir
e
fi
g
h
te


r,
 d


ie
d
 w


h
ile


 


o
n
 d


u
ty


. 
In


 2
0
0
7
 a


 n
e
w


 l
a
w


 w
a
s
 


p
a
s
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro


v
id


e
d
 f
o
r 


a
 t
o
ta


l 


e
x
e
m


p
ti
o
n
 f
ro


m
 a


ll 
s
ta


te
 a


n
d
 


lo
c
a
l 
a
d
 v


a
lo


re
m


 t
a
x
e
s
 f
o
r 


s
u
rv


iv
in


g
 s


p
o
u
s
e
s
 o


f 
fi
re


fi
g
h
te


rs
 


k
ile


d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
in


e
 o


f 
d
u
ty


. 
M


rs
. 


S
c
h
w


a
n
te


s
 d


e
c
la


re
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
e
 


in
q
u
ir
e
d
 a


b
o
u
t 
th


is
 e


x
e
m


p
ti
o
n
 


w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T


a
x
 C


o
m


m
is


s
io


n
e
r'
s
 


o
ff
ic


e
 i
n
 2


0
0
7
.


2
0
0
7
 -


 D
e
n
y


2
0
0
8
 -


 D
e
n
y


2
0
0
9
 -


 D
e
n
y


2
0
1
0
 -


 D
e
n
y


T
a
x
p
a
ye


r 
re


q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 r


e
fu


n
d
 d


u
e
 t
o
 


h
u
s
b
a
n
d
 (


fi
re


fi
g
h
te


r)
 b


e
in


g
 k


ill
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 


lin
e
 o


f 
d
u
ty


 p
e
r 


O
C


G
A


 4
8
-5


-4
8
.4


. 


A
ff
id


a
v
it
 s


ig
n
e
d
 o


n
 J


a
n
u
a
ry


 1
2
, 
2
0
1
1
. 


H
o
m


e
s
te


a
d
 E


x
e
m


p
ti
o
n
 a


p
p
lic


a
ti
o
n
 


s
ig


n
e
d
 o


n
 N


o
v
e
m


b
e
r 


1
2
, 
2
0
0
8
 f
o
r 


th
e
 


fo
llo


w
in


g
 2


0
0
9
 t
a
x
 y


e
a
r.


2
0
1
0
 -


 $
3
,5


5
0
.6


1


2
0
0
9
 -


 $
5
,3


6
6
.6


1


2
0
0
8
 -


 $
5
,5


2
3
.2


9


2
0
0
7
 -


 $
5
,2


6
7
.9


1


N
u


m
b


e
r 


o
f 


R
e
q


u
e
s
ts


6


N
u


m
b


e
r 


o
f 


R
e
c
o


m
m


e
n


d
e
d


 A
p


p
ro


v
a
ls


1


N
u


m
b


e
r 


o
f 


D
e
n


ia
ls


5


T
o


ta
l 
A


m
o


u
n


t 
R


e
q


u
e
s
te


d
$
2
0
,9


1
3
.2


7


A
m


o
u


n
t 


R
e
c
o


m
m


e
n


d
e
d


 t
o


 R
e
fu


n
d


$
2
0
,3


2
8
.2


0
 





		Tax Assessor- Refund Agenda Request File.pdf

		Tax Assessor- Refund Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Tax Assessors Joel Benton / Scott Bennett


Athena Schwantes has requested a hearing before the Board of Commissioners concerning a request for tax exemptions.


THE REQUESTED HEARING IS NOT CONSIDERED A PUBLIC HEARING. Georgia law allows a taxpayer the right to a "hearing" or 


"conference" with the Board of Commissioners when he/she believes an error has occurred in the processing of their property tax liability. 


Mrs. Schwantes filed for certain property tax exemptions based on the fact that her husband passed away while on duty as a firefighter. 


Laws passed in 2007 grant exemptions from ad valorem taxes under those conditions. Mrs. Schwantes contends she is eligible the 


exemptions but the County does not concur.


Hear Mrs. Schwantes' request as required by law. Take action based on whether or not the Board deems the County owes tax refunds to 


Mrs. Schwantes. 


Funding is contingent upon the Board's decision.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, May 26, 2011







West's Code of Georgia Annotated Currentness
Title 48. Revenue and Taxation (Refs & Annos)


Chapter 5. Ad Valorem Taxation of Property (Refs & Annos)
Article 2. Property Tax Exemptions and Deferral


Part 1. Tax Exemptions (Refs & Annos)


§ 48-5-48.4. Homestead exemption for unremarried surviving spouse of peace officer or fire-
fighter killed in line of duty


(a) As used in this Code section, the term:


(1) "Ad valorem taxes" means all state ad valorem taxes and all county, county school district, municipal, and
independent school district taxes for county, county school district, municipal, or independent school district
purposes including, but not limited to, taxes to retire bonded indebtedness.


(2) "Homestead" means homestead as defined and qualified in Code Section 48- 5-40.


(b) Each resident of the state who is the unremarried surviving spouse of a peace officer or firefighter who was
killed in the line of duty is granted an exemption on that person's homestead from all ad valorem taxes for the
full value of that homestead.


(c) A person shall not receive the homestead exemption granted by subsection (b) of this Code section unless the
person or person's agent files an affidavit with the tax commissioner of the county in which that person resides
giving such information relative to receiving such exemption as will enable the tax commissioner to make a de-
termination as to whether such person is entitled to such exemption. The tax commissioner shall provide affi-
davit forms for this purpose and shall require such information as may be necessary to determine the initial and
continuing eligibility of the applicant for the exemption.


(d) The exemption shall be claimed and returned as provided in Code Section 48-5-50.1. The exemption shall
be automatically renewed from year to year as long as the applicant occupies the residence as a homestead.
After a person has filed the proper affidavit as provided in subsection (c) of this Code section, it shall not be ne-
cessary to make application and file such affidavit thereafter for any year and the exemption shall continue to be
allowed to such person. It shall be the duty of any person granted the homestead exemption under this Code sec-
tion to notify the tax commissioner or the designee thereof in the event that person for any reason becomes in-
eligible for that exemption.


(e) The exemption granted by this Code section shall be in lieu of and not in addition to any other homestead ex-
emption from ad valorem taxes.


(f) The exemption granted by this Code section shall apply to all taxable years beginning on or after January 1,
2007.


CREDIT(S)


Laws 2006, Act 948, § 2, eff. Jan. 1, 2007


Page 1
Ga. Code Ann., § 48-5-48.4


© 2011 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works.







HISTORICAL AND STATUTORY NOTES


Laws 2006, Act 948, §§ 3 and 6, provide:


"SECTION 3. Unless prohibited by the federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended, the Secretary of State
shall call and conduct a referendum as provided in this section for the purpose of submitting Section 2 of this
part to the electors of the State of Georgia for approval or rejection. The Secretary of State shall conduct that
election on the date of the November, 2006, state-wide general election. The Secretary of State shall cause the
date and purpose of the election to be published once a week for two weeks immediately preceding the date
thereof in the official organ of each county in the state. The ballot shall have written or printed thereon the
words:


"( ) YES Shall the Act be approved which provides a homestead exemption for the
full value of the homestead with respect to all ad valorem taxes for the


"( ) NO unremarried surviving spouse of a peace officer or firefighter who was
killed in the line of duty?


"All persons desiring to vote for approval of the Act shall vote Yes, and all persons desiring to vote for rejection
of the Act shall vote No. If more than one-half of the votes cast on such question are for approval of the Act,
then Section 2 of this part shall become effective on January 1, 2007, and shall be applicable to all taxable years
beginning on or after that date. If Section 2 of this part is not so approved or if the election is not conducted as
provided in this section, Section 2 of this part shall not become effective and this part shall be automatically re-
pealed on the first day of January immediately following that election date."


"SECTION 6. Except as otherwise provided in Section 3 of Part II of this Act and Section 5 of Part III of this
Act, this Act shall become effective upon its approval by the Governor (May 8, 2006) or upon its becoming law
without such approval."


A referendum providing a homestead exemption with respect to ad valorem taxes for the unremarried surviving
spouse of a peace officer or firefighter killed in the line of duty, proposed by Laws 2006, Act 948, was approved
by the electorate at the general election held on November 7, 2006.


In 2006, the Code Commission redesignated § 48-5-48.3, which was enacted by Laws 2006, Act 948, § 2, as §
48-5-48.4. See § 28-9-5.


Ga. Code Ann., § 48-5-48.4, GA ST § 48-5-48.4


Current through the 2010 Regular Session


© 2011 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works.


END OF DOCUMENT


Page 2
Ga. Code Ann., § 48-5-48.4


© 2011 Thomson Reuters. No Claim to Orig. US Gov. Works.





		Tax Assessor- Schwantes Hearing Agenda Request File.pdf

		Tax Assessor- Schwantes Hearing Backup



